
���������	�	
�������	�
�����	��	����	��
�	����	��������	���
�������

�	������	��������

�	�����	��
���������������		������

��������������

���� !��"�#!$!%&�'�(!)��)�*  �$+*) !�,��#��$+!$��-��#!�.--� !��-��#!�/�(!$)�$��""0!+�
1*$ #�234�56564��#!�7�#!)"�8 �)�9� �:!(!;�<9!)��=�$<�$*���)�>�*$+��-�
:�$! ��$"��-�7�#!)"4�?!@*"�,�;;� �)+0 ����"�A!'0;*$�9!!��)'�" #!+0;!+�*��26B66�
*9��)��#!�:!$!C�:D�:*)�!;"�=�)-!$!) !�A��9��-��#!�7�#!)"�E*$�)!$"#�<�=!)�!$4�
562�F!"��=�$"� *)*�G�$!!�4�7�#!)"4�?H�(�*�I* !%��C�J�(!��)��$+!$����*+(*) !��#!�
<0%;� �#!*;�#�'�*;�%&�*(��+�)'�"� �*;�'*�#!$�)'"��)�'$�0<"��-�9�$!��#*)�26�<!�<;!�
���";�,��#!�"<$!*+��-��#!�=�$�)*(�$0"�K=.LM:N23OD��P?#!$!�,�;;�%!�)��<0%;� �
*  !""�����#!�;� *���)�+!" $�%!+�*%�(!DQ�

?#�"�)��� !�*)+�9!!��)'�*'!)+*�*$!�<�"�!+��);�)!�*��
#��<"BRR,,,D*�#!)"�!@*"!+ D �9R*'!)+*"�

?#!�<0%;� � *)�<*$�� �<*�!�%&�'��)'�����#!�-�;;�,�)'�;�)C�

STTUVWXXYYYZ[\]̂_̀ àZ]̀bXcTŜdVefgX�

?#!�<0%;� �,�;;�%!�<!$9���!+�����--!$�<0%;� � �99!)�"�%&�"!)+�)'�*)�!9*�;����
L-$*)C;�)h*�#!)"�@D'�(�*"�<$�(�+!+�%&��#!�*'!)+*�*)+�*"�<!$9���!+�%&��#!�
<$!"�+�)'��--� !$�+0$�)'��#!�9!!��)'D�

7�$! �$+�)'��-��#!�I* !%��C�J�(!�9!!��)'�,�;;�%!�9*+!�*)+�,�;;�%!�*(*�;*%;!�����#!�
<0%;� ��)�*  �$+*) !�,��#��#!�.<!)�1!!��)'"�7 ��0<�)�,$���!)�$!i0!"�D�

7/8�:7� jF�;;�?$*@"�)NE$!"�+!)�
>.7A:�.I�:MA8=?.AG�188?M�/� jk�#)�?$!)�NL� !NE$!"�+!)�
?l8G:7m4�7EAMJ�524�5656�26B66�7D1D� j=*$9!)�n0)�N�G! $!�*$&
7?n8�G�E7A?�8AGnME�=8�?8A� j=;�--�>�9!$N?$!*"0$!$
:8A8o�:D�:7�M8JG�=.�I8A8�=8�A..1� j:*))&�?�+9�$!N:�$! ��$
562�F�=.AGM=7�7�G?D� jA*)+&�k�)!"N:�$! ��$
7?n8�G4�?H�pqpq2� j1�$'*)�k�)!"N:�$! ��$

2D =*;;����.$+!$

5D :! ;*$*���)��-�=�)-;� ���-�M)�!$!"�

rD E0%;� �=�990)� *���)"

stuvwuxyz�z{�|}~xw��{�}vy�}yz��{�}�w}�z�{y�����������}��}vw�{��z�}��u������x��������
�������������������������� ����¡¢�£�£������£��������£������¤�� ����������������� �������
� �����������������£�¢¢���¤������£�������¡¥�� ��¦�����§��������̈�©��������� �¢¢�¡����ª���



����������	
���������������������������
����������������������
�����������	�������
����

������	
����������������	���������������
�� 
�
����������������!�����������
�����
���"�������
��	�	������������������������	���
	��������
������������
��	#�$���
!����� 
���������		�������
��	������������������%��� ����&�����!�����	�������������
��	�
�������������������&�������
����������������������	�������������!�����������������������

��	�'�

() *+,-./01�/.-23--.+,�4,/�5+--.670�428.+,�10941/.,9�8:0�4551+;47�+<�=.,380-�<1+>�
?@A*�B+41/�=008.,9�=412:�CDCD

E) *+,-./01�/.-23--.+,�4,/�5+--.670�428.+,�10941/.,9�8:0�4551+;47�+<�=412:�CDCD�
F.,4,2.47-�G�H+4,.0�?:701-�G�@A�A.1028+1
I)=412:�CDCD�>+,8:7J�<.,4,2.47-

K)L3418017J�10.>631-0>0,8�8+�8:0�*.8J�+<�?8:0,-�<+1�?/>.,.-8148.;0�M01;.20-�

?9100>0,8

N) OPQRSTUV�TSRWXRRSPQ�YQT�ZPRRS[\U�YW]SPQ�VÛYVTSQ̂�KSP_UVSWR�TVỲ�VUaXUR]�bcc�dPV�
eENfggE)(h)

i) *+,-./01�/.-23--.+,�4,/�5+--.670�428.+,�10941/.,9�?@A*�7+4,-�/31.,9�8:0�*jklA
mn�M8480�4,/�*+3,8J�j1/01-o�H+4,.0�?:701-�G�@p0238.;0�A.1028+1

g) *+,-./01�/.-23--.+,�4,/�5+--.670�428.+,�+,�8:0�4551+;47�+<�?28.+,�q74,�G�H+4,.0�?:701-
G@p0238.;0�A.1028+1

r) @p0238.;0�M0--.+,s
q31-34,8�8+�8:0�t0p4-�u+;01,>0,8�*+/0s
I)M028.+,�vvmwDxyoA07.60148.+,�z0941/.,9�@2+,+>.2�A0;07+5>0,8�{09+8.48.+,-s�
B.+>01.2-

K)M028.+,�vvmwDxy�o�A07.60148.+,�10941/.,9�@2+,+>.2�A0;07+5>0,8�{09+8.48.+,-s�
q1+-5028�|mynn

c}) *+,-./01�/.-23--.+,�4,/�5+--.670�428.+,�2+,201,.,9�.80>-�/.-23--0/�3,/01�?90,/4�|x

cc) ~��������������������������������������������������.80>-

c�) ?/�+31,�
k4701.0�?w�F14,�7.,�
j<<.20�=4,4901�

z0>+;0/�

�������������������  �����¡���� ���¢� ��£¤���� ���¢� �¥�¡¦�£§��¥�� ���¡ ��̈����¢� ©�ª «¬ �����¡����®®¤���£��
¡��£� ¡¥¡ ��̈ �� ¡̈�� ��®¬���¢ �®�¤ �̄°��¬¡��¥¡�¡��������®  ��£§©�±£������� �²³́ ±�µ���� ����¶·̧¹º»¼½¾̄»¿¼�
¡�À²Á�·̧¹�»¼½¾̄°¹̧©��� �Â�¡¤�¡ � ¡̈ ���� �¡�§����� £� ¡��£��±�� ¤�Ã ���£�����£��¥�£���£��� �®  ��£§�
���������¥ ¡®��� ¤�¢��� Ä���Å̈ ¡£® £��±¤ �Ã ���£��½½¿©̧¼¿Æ�½½¿©̧¼ÇÆ�½½¿©̧¼¹Æ�½½¿©̧¼̄Æ�½½¿©̧¼»Æ�½½¿©̧°ÇÆ�
½½¿©̧°¼��£¤�³¤¬����£�±¤ �¹̧©̧¹̧¶�º©�



AEDC Minutes for 3-17-20 
 

Athens Economic Development Corporation 
Board of Directors 

Minutes for March 17, 2020 
 

The Board of Directors of the Athens Economic Development Corporation (hereinafter referred 
to as AEDC) held a Board Meeting at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, March 17, 2020 in the Derek D. 
Daniels Room of the Athens Partnership Center located at 201 W Corsicana Street, Athens, 
Texas. 
 
     Directors present:    Will Traxson, John Trent, Danny Tidmore, Morgan Jones and Cliff  
                                      Bomer 
 
     Staff present:           Joanie Ahlers, Executive Director and Valerie Franklin, Office Manager 
 
     Ex-Officio:              Mayor Monte Montgomery, City Manager Elizabeth Borstad 
 
     Guests:                    Deborah Deas and Thomas Strand 
 
Call to Order 
 
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 A.M. by President Will Traxson for all agenda items. A 
quorum was present. 
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 
Mayor Monte Montgomery will remove himself from executive session prospect #1802. 
 
Public Communications 
 
Deborah Deas from the East Texas Arboretum commented concerning the COVID-19 virus.   
 
Consider discussion and possible actions regarding the approval of Minutes from the 
February 2020 AEDC Board Meeting and Minutes from Special Board Meeting for 
Planning February 18, 2020 
 
A motion was made by John Trent to approve the February meeting minutes and the February 
18, 2020 minutes from special board meeting.  It was seconded by Cliff Bomer.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Consider discussion and possible action regarding the approval of February 2020 
Financials  
 
A motion was made by Cliff Bomer and seconded by Danny Tidmore to approve the February 
2020 financials.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
Presentation of Final Report – Greg Last EP Best Practices LLC 



AEDC Minutes for 3-17-20 
 

Mr. Last presented a summary of the 2020 AEDC Action Plan.  He received feedback from 
board members.  He will provide a final report prior to the board’s April meeting for the Board 
to take action on. 
 
Consider discussion and possible action regarding GIS Mapping 
 
There was discussion concerning GIS mapping abilities. The initial portion of the project will be 
the parcel layer only.  A motion was made by John Trent and seconded by Cliff Bomer to 
contribute up to $25,000 toward GIS mapping.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 
Consider discussion and possible action concerning an AEDC spec building 
 
Potentially four or five sites for a spec building. Four in Industrial Park area and one on Flat 
Creek Road. Chart shows completed shell cost only. Utilities up to the building, 
engineering/architectural site plans and the shell.   
 
The Board instructed Executive Director Joanie Ahlers to look at more specifically building a 
30,000 square foot building on lot 5 in the industrial park and a 50,000 square foot building on 
FM 1616. This item was tabled until the next board meeting. 
 
Cain Center Presentation 
 
City Manager Elizabeth Borstad informed the Board on the Cain Center project.  She stated the 
City is working with Berry & Clay construction Managers at Risk on finalizing the cost of the 
project.  The City has applied for grants from the Murchison Foundation and the Cain 
Foundation.  The City will meet next week and are waiting on the final numbers to come in. 
 
Cliff Bomer stated he would like the AEDC to help the Cain Center project.  There was further 
discussion about funding from AEDC in the future.  
 
Consider discussion and possible action for Biomerics draw #10 for 84,538.58 
 
Executive Director Joanie Ahlers stated Dub Hurst has completed his report and we are waiting 
in City of Athens Building Inspector to complete his inspection. We are requesting the payment 
be approved pending inspection prior to releasing payment. 
 
A motion was made by Cliff Bomer and seconded by John Trent to approve payment to 
Biomerics for draw #10.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
Executive Session 
 
Executive Session began at 11:48 a.m. 
 
Consider discussion and possible action concerning items discussed under Agenda item #11 
 
The board re-convened in open session at 12:40 p.m.   



AEDC Minutes for 3-17-20 
 

Danny Tidmore made a motion to approve Prospect #1802 was approved as the details on deal 
structure as outline in Executive Session in the amount of approximately $180,000 in land 
It was seconded by Cliff Bomer. The motion carried unanimously.      
A motion was made by John Trent and seconded by Cliff Bomer to approve Prospect #1803 for 
the details on deal structure as outline in Executive Session in the amount of $25,788 total over a 
three-year period.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
 
AEDC Board of Director’s request for future agenda items 
 
Approval of 2020 Action Plan 
Further discussion on Cain Center 
Construction discussion for spec building 
 
Adjourn 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:49 p.m. with no other business to discuss. 
 
 
 
___________________________________               _________________________________ 
Carmen Hunt, Secretary                                              Will Traxson, President 
 
 
 

 
 



Athens Economic Development Corporation 
Agenda Memorandum for Board Meeting 

 

AGENDA DATE:  04/21/2020  

DEPARTMENT:  AEDC 

CONTACT:    Joanie Ahlers, City of Athens Economic Development Director 

   

SUBJECT:    Consider discussion and possible action regarding the March 2020 financial 
 reports. 

SUMMARY:   Sales tax revenue for the month of March 2020 was $116,502.78 compared to 
$105,701.32 in March 2020. Revenues for the month of March totaled $133,714.03 
and Expenditures were $19,688. Revenues are $911,424.84 to date or 57.1% of 
budget, and expenditures are $92,907.90 or 7.5% of budgeted amounts as of 
03/31/2020. Cash balances as of 03/31/2020 were $2,901,414.35. 

       
RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the board discuss and take action to either approve the 

 financial reports as is or request changes. 



Mar 31, 20

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1010 · FIRST STATE BANK CHECKING 509,225.76
1020 · VERA BANK USDA RLF - RESTRICTED 184,429.98
1040 · LOGIC INVESTMENT ACCT 1,320,922.32
1050 · TEXSTAR INVESTMENT ACCOUNT 886,836.29
1060 · CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

1061 · FSB 8946 - CD 6 MO. 1,020,906.10

Total 1060 · CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT 1,020,906.10

Total Checking/Savings 3,922,320.45

Accounts Receivable
11000 · ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (4,984.44)

Total Accounts Receivable (4,984.44)

Other Current Assets
1129 · Loans Receivable

1139 · BIOMERICS
1140 · BIOMERICS 1702/1704 ENT IMPRV

1140.1 · PRINCIPAL 848,956.88
1140.2 · RETAINAGE (84,895.69)

Total 1140 · BIOMERICS 1702/1704 ENT IMPRV 764,061.19

1141 · RENT ABATEMENT
1142 · ABATEMENT PRINCIPAL 55,728.24
1143 · ABATEMENT REPAYMENT (24,476.65)

Total 1141 · RENT ABATEMENT 31,251.59

Total 1139 · BIOMERICS 795,312.78

1150 · EXTREME ENGINEERING $250K 1,440.70
1151 · EXTREME ENGINEERING $480K 233,853.47
1152 · EXTREME ENGINEERING (RLF 87545) 1,569.16
1180 · HVAC #1 - $503,304 ORIGINAL 352,190.29
1181 · HVAC #3 - $324,800 BUILDING 295,503.04
1190 · PURSELLEY CABINETS - $30,077.25 10,190.23

Total 1129 · Loans Receivable 1,690,059.67

Total Other Current Assets 1,690,059.67

Total Current Assets 5,607,395.68

Fixed Assets 4,825,891.54

TOTAL ASSETS 10,433,287.22

Athens Economic Development Corporation
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2020



Mar 31, 20

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

2000 · ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1,717.40

Total Accounts Payable 1,717.40

Other Current Liabilities
2150 · BIOMERICS SECURITY DEPOSIT 9,597.68

Total Other Current Liabilities 9,597.68

Total Current Liabilities 11,315.08

Long Term Liabilities
2800 · NOTES PAYABLE

2810 · FSB 8602 - BIOMERICS RENO
2811 · PRINCIPAL REPAYMENT BIOMERICS (13,811.64)
2810 · FSB 8602 - BIOMERICS RENO - Other 764,061.19

Total 2810 · FSB 8602 - BIOMERICS RENO 750,249.55

2820 · FSB 8190 - AIRPORT 296.142 ACRE 467,924.99
2830 · FSB 8620 - MORTGAGE APC 94,446.11
2840 · VERA 3044 - INDUS PK II 98.36AC 324,916.75
2860 · VERA 6211 - INDUS PK II INFRAST 280,875.87

Total 2800 · NOTES PAYABLE 1,918,413.27

Total Long Term Liabilities 1,918,413.27

Total Liabilities 1,929,728.35

Equity
3250 · Committed Fund Balance 1,333,976.65
3275 · Inv in Gen Fixed Assets 3,523,967.80
3900 · Net Position 2,827,097.48
Net Income 818,516.94

Total Equity 8,503,558.87

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 10,433,287.22

Athens Economic Development Corporation
Balance Sheet

March 31, 2020



Mar 20

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4000 · Income
4001 · Rental Income - 201 W Corsicana 1,850.00
4005 · Sales Taxes 116,502.78
4010 · Miscellaneous Income 305.96

Total 4000 · Income 118,658.74

4100 · Operating Lease Revenue
4108 · Biomerics FMI 9,597.68

Total 4100 · Operating Lease Revenue 9,597.68

4950 · Interest Revenues-Cash Accounts 2,358.45
4951 · Interest Revenue-Receivables 3,099.16

Total Income 133,714.03

Gross Profit 133,714.03

Expense
6000 · Operating Expenses

6001 · ATHENS EDC
6001.2 · Office Supplies 160.13
6001.4 · Xerox 439.38
6001.6 · BANK SERVICE CHARGES 32.50

Total 6001 · ATHENS EDC 632.01

6015 · ATHENS PARTNERSHIP CENTER
6015.1 · Water/Sewer/Trash 145.82
6015.13 · Security Monitoring 282.00
6015.2 · Electric 908.79
6015.3 · Janitorial 400.00
6015.5 · Windows 35.00
6015.6 · Telecommunications 637.07

Total 6015 · ATHENS PARTNERSHIP CENTER 2,408.68

6016 · Interest Expense 3,877.54
6040 · Membership Dues 371.76
6060 · Subscriptions/Licenses 349.99

Total 6000 · Operating Expenses 7,639.98

6100 · Professional Services
6120 · Legal Fees 270.00
6130 · Survey/Appraisal/Filing Fees 680.00
6100 · Professional Services - Other 10,627.50

Total 6100 · Professional Services 11,577.50

6400 · Marketing
6450 · Advertising/Printing/Misc 150.00

Total 6400 · Marketing 150.00

6700 · Property Maintenance/Expenses
6710 · Athens Industrial Park

6710-05 · Athens Industrial Park Dev 34.00

Total 6710 · Athens Industrial Park 34.00

Athens Economic Development Corporation
Profit & Loss

March 2020



Mar 20

6720 · 414 W. College
6720-02 · Gas 51.83
6720-03 · Electric 31.36
6720-04 · Water/Sewer 139.20

Total 6720 · 414 W. College 222.39

Total 6700 · Property Maintenance/Expenses 256.39

6750 · Business Retention
6750.70 · Business Appreciation 64.13

Total 6750 · Business Retention 64.13

Total Expense 19,688.00

Net Ordinary Income 114,026.03

Net Income 114,026.03

Athens Economic Development Corporation
Profit & Loss

March 2020



Oct '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

4000 · Income
4001 · Rental Income - 201 W Corsicana 11,100.00 22,200.00 (11,100.00) 50.0%
4005 · Sales Taxes 799,284.71 1,400,000.00 (600,715.29) 57.1%
4010 · Miscellaneous Income 1,223.84 0.00 1,223.84 100.0%

Total 4000 · Income 811,608.55 1,422,200.00 (610,591.45) 57.1%

4100 · Operating Lease Revenue
4108 · Biomerics FMI 57,586.08 98,900.00 (41,313.92) 58.2%

Total 4100 · Operating Lease Revenue 57,586.08 98,900.00 (41,313.92) 58.2%

4950 · Interest Revenues-Cash Accounts 22,924.44 18,000.00 4,924.44 127.4%
4951 · Interest Revenue-Receivables 19,305.77 56,099.00 (36,793.23) 34.4%

Total Income 911,424.84 1,595,199.00 (683,774.16) 57.1%

Gross Profit 911,424.84 1,595,199.00 (683,774.16) 57.1%

Expense
6000 · Operating Expenses

6001 · ATHENS EDC
6001.2 · Office Supplies 1,696.07 12,000.00 (10,303.93) 14.1%
6001.3 · Postage/Shipping/Delivery 0.00 500.00 (500.00) 0.0%
6001.4 · Xerox 1,852.95 4,500.00 (2,647.05) 41.2%

Total 6001 · ATHENS EDC 3,601.20 17,000.00 (13,398.80) 21.2%

6015 · ATHENS PARTNERSHIP CENTER
6015.1 · Water/Sewer/Trash 1,228.46 2,500.00 (1,271.54) 49.1%
6015.13 · Security Monitoring 636.16 3,000.00 (2,363.84) 21.2%
6015.14 · Pest Control 125.00 500.00 (375.00) 25.0%
6015.15 · Building Repairs/Maintenance 950.02 7,500.00 (6,549.98) 12.7%
6015.17 · Equip Maint/IT Support 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
6015.18 · Flag Tributes - Kiwanis 0.00 160.00 (160.00) 0.0%
6015.2 · Electric 3,994.17 10,000.00 (6,005.83) 39.9%
6015.3 · Janitorial 4,120.00 11,000.00 (6,880.00) 37.5%
6015.5 · Windows 105.00 540.00 (435.00) 19.4%
6015.6 · Telecommunications 3,687.42 9,000.00 (5,312.58) 41.0%
6015.8 · APC /Landscaping 0.00 300.00 (300.00) 0.0%

Total 6015 · ATHENS PARTNERSHIP CENTER 14,846.23 45,500.00 (30,653.77) 32.6%

6016 · Interest Expense 21,643.77 66,000.00 (44,356.23) 32.8%
6020 · Insurance

6020.1 · Errors & Omissions 0.00 750.00 (750.00) 0.0%
6020.2 · Property/Liab/WC 16,940.00 10,000.00 6,940.00 169.4%

Total 6020 · Insurance 16,940.00 10,750.00 6,190.00 157.6%

6030 · Legal Advertising 0.00 1,000.00 (1,000.00) 0.0%
6040 · Membership Dues 531.76 7,500.00 (6,968.24) 7.1%
6050 · Seminars/Training 175.00 6,000.00 (5,825.00) 2.9%
6060 · Subscriptions/Licenses 349.99 8,000.00 (7,650.01) 4.4%
6080 · Travel 722.11 6,500.00 (5,777.89) 11.1%
6090 · Temporary Work 11,294.08 1,500.00 9,794.08 752.9%

Total 6000 · Operating Expenses 70,104.14 169,750.00 (99,645.86) 41.3%

Athens Economic Development Corporation
Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual

October 2019 through March 2020



Oct '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

6100 · Professional Services
6110 · Auditing Fees 0.00 4,000.00 (4,000.00) 0.0%
6120 · Legal Fees 2,722.80 15,000.00 (12,277.20) 18.2%
6130 · Survey/Appraisal/Filing Fees 2,040.00 5,000.00 (2,960.00) 40.8%
6140 · Office Acctg. Fees 2,700.00 10,800.00 (8,100.00) 25.0%
6150 · Economic Development Consulting 0.00 50,000.00 (50,000.00) 0.0%

Total 6100 · Professional Services 18,090.30 84,800.00 (66,709.70) 21.3%

6200 · Personnel
6230 · Medical Insurance 0.00 16,000.00 (16,000.00) 0.0%
6240 · Retirement 0.00 20,000.00 (20,000.00) 0.0%
6260.3 · Staff Compensation 0.00 125,600.00 (125,600.00) 0.0%
6260.4 · FICA Payroll Tax Expense 0.00 9,608.00 (9,608.00) 0.0%
6260.5 · Workers Comp 0.00 100.00 (100.00) 0.0%

Total 6200 · Personnel 0.00 171,308.00 (171,308.00) 0.0%

6400 · Marketing
6410 · IAMC 0.00 5,000.00 (5,000.00) 0.0%
6415 · ONCOR 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%
6425 · I-20 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%
6440 · ICSC 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%
6445 · Team Texas Dues 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%
6447 · Dallas Regional Chamber 0.00 2,500.00 (2,500.00) 0.0%
6448 · Team Texas Events 0.00 3,000.00 (3,000.00) 0.0%
6449 · Recruitment Missions 0.00 15,000.00 (15,000.00) 0.0%
6450 · Advertising/Printing/Misc 766.35 25,000.00 (24,233.65) 3.1%
6460 · Website/Email/E-Marketing 1,400.00 5,600.00 (4,200.00) 25.0%

Total 6400 · Marketing 2,166.35 68,100.00 (65,933.65) 3.2%

6700 · Property Maintenance/Expenses
6710 · Athens Industrial Park

6710-01 · Landscaping/Mowing 0.00 6,000.00 (6,000.00) 0.0%
6710-05 · Athens Industrial Park Dev 34.00 0.00 34.00 100.0%

Total 6710 · Athens Industrial Park 34.00 6,000.00 (5,966.00) 0.6%

6720 · 414 W. College
6720-01 · Repairs and Maintenance 1,225.00 2,000.00 (775.00) 61.3%
6720-02 · Gas 258.49 1,500.00 (1,241.51) 17.2%
6720-03 · Electric 345.49 3,000.00 (2,654.51) 11.5%
6720-04 · Water/Sewer 620.00 2,000.00 (1,380.00) 31.0%
6720-05 · Mowing 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%

Total 6720 · 414 W. College 2,448.98 10,000.00 (7,551.02) 24.5%

6735 · 1391 Flat Creek Rd., Suite 103
6735-02 · Mowing 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.0%

Total 6735 · 1391 Flat Creek Rd., Suite 103 0.00 1,250.00 (1,250.00) 0.0%

6740 · 1702/1704 Enterprise
6740-03 · Repairs & Maintenance 0.00 20,000.00 (20,000.00) 0.0%
6740-11 · Property Tax Reimbursement 0.00 (17,000.00) 17,000.00 0.0%
6740-12 · Property Taxes 0.00 17,000.00 (17,000.00) 0.0%

Total 6740 · 1702/1704 Enterprise 0.00 20,000.00 (20,000.00) 0.0%

6745 · FM 1616 Mowing 0.00 6,000.00 (6,000.00) 0.0%

Total 6700 · Property Maintenance/Expenses 2,482.98 43,250.00 (40,767.02) 5.7%



Oct '19 - Mar 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

6750 · Business Retention
6750.20 · CEO Luncheons 0.00 1,500.00 (1,500.00) 0.0%
6750.30 · Seminars 0.00 3,500.00 (3,500.00) 0.0%
6750.60 · Workforce Development 0.00 4,500.00 (4,500.00) 0.0%
6750.70 · Business Appreciation 64.13 5,500.00 (5,435.87) 1.2%

Total 6750 · Business Retention 64.13 15,000.00 (14,935.87) 0.4%

8000 · AEDC GRANT COMMITMENTS 0.00 456,800.00 (456,800.00) 0.0%
8003 · Infrastructure 0.00 228,500.00 (228,500.00) 0.0%

Total Expense 92,907.90 1,237,508.00 (1,144,600.10) 7.5%

Net Ordinary Income 818,516.94 357,691.00 460,825.94 228.8%

Net Income 818,516.94 357,691.00 460,825.94 228.8%











���������	�	
�������	�
�����	��	����	�
�������	������������������
��������������������

���������� !"# �������$���$
��%�" "����%�" ��&��&����
��%�" "����'#���%�" ��&��&����
�'"�()&��" )����*�)"+ �
�%," �

"#%-%�(.��/�/
�/	/�-�0����1
�"�+"#)��.�������$������1

23456789�:89;<=8�>?@697A5<6?

23456789�:89;<=8B

CD��E��$$��$����#�C1��E�$���D���

F7A<G�H4�I5B

����%���)JK"#%!%�(/�� 

L<4<5�H4�M?G<?8B

NNN/K"#%!%�(/�� 

OI:>2�OH:>PF::�2QF2R>PS I==63?5�P37T89BUUVVVVVWXYVW

I==63?5�MZ?89[4\B I]QFP:�F2MPM̂ >2�_FLF̀ Mâ FP]�2MbaMbI]>MP

OAGA?=8�:377A9c

O8d<??<?d�OAGA?=8�A4�6@UYeUVefUfU gVhViUjklUh
m��"n�)o�)�%�+��#"+o�)��C�E p�.���/��
���o�'+#%N%*)�%�+��"!o�)��C�E p�/��

F?q<?d�OAGA?=8�A4�6@UYeYVefUfU gVhfiXjWlkV
�"#Ko�"��'%#,")�r�#��"#o�+ p�/��

2bF_>]:

_A58 _84=9<s5<6? _8s64<54

%#��� ���	��� �.���/��

_I>̀t�OÌ IP2F�:Ĥ Îbt

_A58 OAGA?=8

%#��� �D�.�1$/��

u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�uuuu�uuuuu�uuu��uu����uuu�u�u�uu����u�u�u���uu��u����uuu�u�u���u���uuu�uu�u��u��u�u��u����u�����u�u�uu�uu����u��u���uuuuuuuuu���u��uu��������u��u��uu�uu�u�u��u��uu�uuuuuu�uuuu�u��uu�u�uuuu��u�uu�uu����u�u��uu�uuuuuuuuu�uu�uu���u�uu�uu����u�u��u���u�uu���u����uuu�uuuu��u���uu�u�u����uuu��u���uu�uuuuuu�u����uuuuuu�u������u����u�uuu�u���u��u��u������u�����u���uu�u�����u�uuu���uuu��uu�uu��u��u���uu�u�u�u�uu�uu���uuu�uuu������u���uu�u�u��u�uuuuu�uu����uuuuuuu�u�����uu�u�u������uu�u�uuuuuuuuuuuu�uu�u��u�uu�uuu���uuuuuu�uu�uu��u�uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�u�uuuu�uuuuu�uuu��uu����uuu�u�u�uu����u�u�u���uu��u����uuu�u�u���u���uuu�uu�u��u��u�u��u����u�����u�u�uu�uu����u��u���uuuuuuuuu���u��uu��������u��u��uu�uu�u�u��u��uu�uuuuuu�uuuu�u��uu�u�uuuu��u�uu�uu����u�u��uu�uuuuuuuuu�uu�uu���u�uu�uu����u�u��u���u�uu���u����uuu�uuuu��u���uu�u�u����uuu��u���uu�uuuuuu�u����uuuuuu�u������u����u�uuu�u���u��u��u������u�����u���uu�u�����u�uuu���uuu��uu�uu��u��u���uu�u�u�u�uu�uu���uuu�uuu������u���uu�u�u��u�uuuuu�uu����uuuuuuu�u�����uu�u�u������uu�u�uuuuuuuuuuuu�uu�u��u�uu�uuu���uuuuuu�uu�uu��u�uuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuu

�����D�������$1������������������������������������������������

�
�
�
�
�
D
�
�
��
�
�
�
$
1
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�����D������������������������������������������������





TSL..*89110*.0250146004.01345.01345.CNSTSL01.....LT........JLT.......000002617 

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, PLEASE CONTACT LOGIC PARTICIPANT SERVICES AT 1-800-895-6442

ATHENS EDC
ATTN MANDIE QUIGG
201 W CORSICANA ST STE 3
ATHENS TX 75751-2414

PAGE: 1 of 1

MONTHLY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

ACCOUNT:  2387943001

ACCOUNT NAME:  OPERATING

STATEMENT PERIOD: 03/01/2020 - 03/31/2020 

LOGIC MONTHLY SUMMARY: THE AVERAGE MONTHLY RATE WAS 1.4261%. THE AVERAGE WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY WAS 35
DAYS AND THE NET ASSET VALUE FOR 3/31/20 WAS 0.999156.

 MONTHLY ACTIVITY DETAIL

TRANSACTION

DATE DESCRIPTION

CONFIRMATION

NUMBER

TRANSACTION

AMOUNT BALANCE

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,319,324.48

03/31/2020 MONTHLY POSTING 9999888 1,597.84 1,320,922.32

ENDING BALANCE 1,320,922.32

 MONTHLY ACCOUNT SUMMARY

BEGINNING BALANCE 1,319,324.48

TOTAL DEPOSITS 0.00

TOTAL WITHDRAWALS 0.00

TOTAL INTEREST 1,597.84

ENDING BALANCE 1,320,922.32

AVERAGE BALANCE 1,319,376.02

 ACTIVITY SUMMARY (YEAR-TO-DATE)

ACCOUNT NAME DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS INTEREST

OPERATING 0.00 0.00 5,450.42





TSL..*92110*.0250149004.01952.01952.CNSTSL01.....TL........JTL.......000003325 

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS, PLEASE CONTACT TEXSTAR PARTICIPANT SERVICES AT 1-800-839-7827.

ATHENS EDC
ATTN MANDIE QUIGG
201 W CORSICANA ST STE 3
ATHENS TX 75751-2414

PAGE: 1 of 1

MONTHLY STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT

ACCOUNT:  1070611110

ACCOUNT NAME:  OPERATING

STATEMENT PERIOD: 03/01/2020 - 03/31/2020 

TEXSTAR MONTHLY SUMMARY: THE AVERAGE MONTHLY RATE WAS 0.9570%. THE AVERAGE WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY WAS 27
DAYS AND THE NET ASSET VALUE FOR 3/31/20 WAS 1.000685.

 MONTHLY ACTIVITY DETAIL

TRANSACTION

DATE DESCRIPTION

CONFIRMATION

NUMBER

TRANSACTION

AMOUNT BALANCE

BEGINNING BALANCE 886,116.10

03/31/2020 MONTHLY POSTING 9999888 720.19 886,836.29

ENDING BALANCE 886,836.29

 MONTHLY ACCOUNT SUMMARY

BEGINNING BALANCE 886,116.10

TOTAL DEPOSITS 0.00

TOTAL WITHDRAWALS 0.00

TOTAL INTEREST 720.19

ENDING BALANCE 886,836.29

AVERAGE BALANCE 886,139.33

 ACTIVITY SUMMARY (YEAR-TO-DATE)

ACCOUNT NAME DEPOSITS WITHDRAWALS INTEREST

OPERATING 266,000.00 0.00 2,814.87







UPDATED IN INCODE 

743,343.73   
20,717.46 + 
-------------------------- 
764,061.19 = Balance AO 03.31.20 



���������	�
��������

��������

����������������	

�����������

 ��	�	!�����	

"#$$%

�&������	���	���

'(")*+",#,-

.�!������	������������

',*)+-#/0

.�!����&���	�
���������

',/*)",#),

1!�����	������22�������

'0/"*)"0#/,


�����������	

345�$/*�($(0

6��7�����������	

89:�-+*�($-+

6�	����;!����	�	!�

'<-#+/

 ��	�	!���������

'<*(,)#,)

 ��	�	!��������=�

'/*)()#$+

�����	�����	�	!�

'-+"#0)

>		�������	

'$#$$

?��	��	����!�

����������2��������

@	���A�����!������!

�@�A	���	� ��	����7 ���!�	�
� ������

B���!������!

CDE4� C4FGHIJEIKL� 8MK9LE� NDODLG4

8MK9LE

@P���A�������7	CDE4

� Q�	���!	���A@	���A

Q���	������.���!�R�������

�>���	��



764,061.19  ACCT 2370.01 
20,717.46 - ACCT 2370.1 
-------------------------- 
743,343.73 = TOTAL



Mar 31, 20

Beginning Balance 471,417.88
Cleared Transactions

Payments and Credits - 1 it... 3,492.89

Total Cleared Transactions 3,492.89

Cleared Balance 467,924.99
Register Balance as of 03/31/2020 467,924.99
Ending Balance 467,924.99

8:53 AM Athens Economic Development Corporation
03/11/20 Reconciliation Summary

2820 · FSB 8190 - AIRPORT 296.142 ACRE, Period Ending 03/31/2020

Page 1



���������	��
���������

���������

������
���������	

����������

���	�	������	

 !"#$

�%������	���	���

&'!''

(����
�)�	���*����+������

&,-.',!/#

(������%���	�0	���������

&##1-1#'!''

2������	��
�)�33�������

&,#"-44#!"1

*������)����	

567�8"-� '1'

9��:�����������	

567�8"-� '8.

9�	���);�����	�	��

&1.!/"

���	�	���
��������

& -4,/!. 

���	�	���
��������

&81-,"#!.'

�����	�����	�	��

&"8!",

0		�������	

&'!''

<��	��	������

����������3��������

=	���>�������������

�=�>	���	� ��	����: �����	�
� ������

?�����������

@AB6� @6CDEFGBFHI� JKHLIB� MANAID6

JKHLIB

=O���>�������:	@AB6

� P�	����	���>=	���>

?�Q�2Q	�
��*����RS2�T����������

�0���	��



����� �����	
�	��� ������ �������

������������
������������

 ��!"�#��$ ��%&�'(&

)!������$ *��**'&+

,%�-�%'(. %.+�&�%'&&

/�0��-������
������������

 ��!"�#��$ ��%(-'%*

)!������$ *��*&'%-

,%�-�%'(. %+*�%*+'((

1�!��+������
������������

 ��!"�#��$ ��-(+'+.

)!������$ &*+'*�

,%�-�%'(. %+%�&��'�&

2�"�*�����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. %+(�%&*'�-

758�*%����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. %(*�&.*'��

9"��������*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. %(-�.%+'�%

3�#��%����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. %(&�*�*'&+

:;<��*����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. %&���.*'*.

1;��*(����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. %&-�.*�'*�

1;!�*(����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. %&(�&.&'�+

��=�*-����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. -������'..

:#��*&����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. -�-�+��'-�

����*(����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. -�(�&&-'.-

/�0�*%����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. -*��*.-'%+

1�!�*(����*&
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. -*-�.%�'%&

2�"��*����*(
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. -*&��+�'(+

758�������*(
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. -���%-.'��

9"��*-����*(
3456��������

,%�-�%'(. -�-�%��'�*



Mar 31, 20

Beginning Balance 98,464.20
Cleared Transactions

Payments and Credits - 1 it... 4,018.09

Total Cleared Transactions 4,018.09

Cleared Balance 94,446.11
Register Balance as of 03/31/2020 94,446.11
Ending Balance 94,446.11

8:57 AM Athens Economic Development Corporation
03/11/20 Reconciliation Summary

2830 · FSB 8620 - MORTGAGE APC, Period Ending 03/31/2020

Page 1



���������	��
���������

��������

������
���������	

�������

���	�	������	

��� !

�"������	���	���

#$�$$

%����
�&�	���'����(������

# )��$���

%������"���	�*	
��������

#+)$,,)-$$�$$

.������	��
�&�//�������

#0 ) -0�0�

'������&����	

123�+ )��$��

4��5�����������	

627�+ )��$+$

4�	���&8�����	�	��

#��0�

���	�	���
��������

#-9���:

���	�	���
��������

# )$�+��9

�����	�����	�	��

#+:�,-

;		�������	

#$�$$

<��	��	������

����������/��������

*	���=�������������

�*�=	���	� ��	����5 �����	�
� ������

>�����������

?@A2� ?2BCDE7AEFG� HIFJGA� K@L@GC2

HIFJGA

*M���=�������5	?@A2

� N�	����	���=*	���=

>�O�.O	�
��'�����
���P�����Q����

�;���	��



����� �����	
�	��� ������ �������

������������
������������

 ��!"�#��$ %��&'(�)

*!������$ ���(&+

,%����(�- )%�%%-(&&

.�/��0������
������������

 ��!"�#��$ %���)('0

*!������$ �&�(%&

,%����(�- )'�%-%(��

1�!��+������
������������

 ��!"�#��$ %��0-(�&

*!������$ &-%(�0

,%����(�- &���%+%(�0

2�"�&-����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &�-�0��(�-

758�������&) 9:;<�=�:7><�?@<9$��(-%���A72<9$�(�����3 B*;$ ,�(�� &&��0&�()�

758�&%����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &&��0&�()�

?"��������&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &&%�000(&�

3�#��%����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &&'�0�)(-&

:CD��&����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &���%%�(-�

1C��&'����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &�-��%�()�

1C!�&�����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &���&+�(%-

��E�&0����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &�%�&%%()�

:#��&)����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &�'��)0(+%

����&&����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &%&�'')(%%

.�/�&%����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &%0�'&�(�%

1�!�&'����&)
3456��������

,%��-�()' &%)�+�%(%-

2�"��%����&'
3456��������

,%��&0(�+ &0��-+-(+0

758�������&' 9:;<�=�:7><�?@<9$��(&%���A72<9$�(�����3 B*;$ ,�(�� &0-�+��('%

758�&�����&'
3456��������

,%��&0(�+ &0-�+��('%



��������	 �
�������	� ��	�� ���������

�����������������������

�������� ���

�����	��!�����

"����#����$

%���&	��	'(
�)	*��	*��	+�	�(�

, ���-./�0�/1 2���(�()�����&	

3	�	(���*�44	�	�(���(	����������(���

5�6 7/�.7��/�89�������� :;<:=<>:>:�:?$?@$@>�2%�ABCD

E�77��/���� �9�������� :;<:=<>:>:

, ����.. ��/9�������� ???F:G?@?�H�IG:;;�H�J���	����

K /��LM9�������� NO>G:;;

P7����./� ��8�/��7����9��:?<:=<>:>:�(��:;<:@<>:>:����B*�(�*�(	����&	

�

AC��Q�	R���S�	��*�R���4�������(	*�)��&	�T��������()	�U()	��J)��&	�
�����(VD


�R����*���$��J3W�4��	 ��X 

�

Y	&����
2�Z�	�(

:;<:G<>:>: [=T@O=V=F [@TF@OV;N [=?FV>? [:V::[G?NTF@FV>O

Y	&����
2�Z�	�(

:G<:G<>:>: [=T@O=V=F [=T:>OVGN [@;FVG? [:V::[G>;TF?=VO@

Y	&����
2�Z�	�(

:><:@<>:>: [=T@O=V=F [@TFO=V:G [=::V== [:V::[GG:TF;;V?G

Y	&����
2�Z�	�(

:?<:O<>:>: [=T@O=V=F [=T:>OVGN [@;FVG? [:V::[GG=TF>:V?=

��R�
��\VVV� C	���� ]̂"�

_̀abcadefgb

_hij

_̀abcadefgb

klljdefmj

naej

opgqbe

orrgdaejs

_g

t̀fbdfiar

orrgdaejs

_g

ubej̀jce

vewj̀

xwàyjc

xq̀ j̀be

zarabdj

{	���	 Y	���(� C����4	�����*�2�Z�	�(� ̂���(�3	�Q�	� *̂�����(��(���



��������	 �
�������	� ��	�� ���������

�����������������������

�������� ���

�����	��!�����

"����#����$

%���&	��	'(
�)	*��	*��	+�	�(�

, ���-./�0�/1 2���(�()�����&	

3	�	(���*�44	�	�(���(	����������(���

5�6 7/�.7��/�89�������� :;<:=<>:>:�:?$?=$@:�2%�ABCD

E�77��/���� �9�������� :;<:=<>:>:

, ����.. ��/9�������� ???F:@?G?�H�I=>??�H�J���	����

K /��LM9�������� NOF=>??

P7����./� ��8�/��7����9��:?<:=<>:>:�(��:;<:G<>:>:����B*�(�*�(	����&	

�

AC��Q�	R���S�	��*�R���4�������(	*�)��&	�T��������()	�U()	��J)��&	�
�����(VD


�R����*���$��J3W�4��	 ��X 

�

Y	&����
2�Z�	�(

:;<:@<>:>: [;TNFFVGG [;T>?:V>; [=NFV@? [:V::[>O=T==GV=@

Y	&����
2�Z�	�(

:@<:@<>:>: [;TNFFVGG [;T>F:V:? [=:FVG; [:V::[>N:TNOGVNO

Y	&����
2�Z�	�(

:><:G<>:>: [;TNFFVGG [;T>@GV?@ [==;V;> [:V::[>NGT?=GVNN

Y	&����
2�Z�	�(

:?<:O<>:>: [;TNFFVGG [;T>FGV:@ [=:;VG> [:V::[>NFT;:?V:?

��R�
��\VVV� C	���� ]̂"�

_̀abcadefgb

_hij

_̀abcadefgb

klljdefmj

naej

opgqbe

orrgdaejs

_g

t̀fbdfiar

orrgdaejs

_g

ubej̀jce

vewj̀

xwàyjc

xq̀ j̀be

zarabdj

{	���	 Y	���(� C����4	�����*�2�Z�	�(� ̂���(�3	�Q�	� *̂�����(��(���



MONTH FY 17-18 FY 16-17 FY 15-16 FY 14-15 FY 13-14
OCTOBER 108,836.90 107,305.97 100,033.48 108,640.57 95,873.38
NOVEMBER 117,246.80 123,854.04 126,094.85 117,169.53 123,525.27
DECEMBER 100,882.04 100,190.32 98,614.40 93,548.09 95,434.94
JANUARY 105,904.29 104,831.24 105,572.58 103,198.20 101,042.03
FEBRUARY 135,223.06 142,065.60 137,952.72 137,110.33 137,272.96
MARCH 99,801.86 96,194.44 94,796.44 88,087.27 89,051.01
APRIL 99,940.12 97,806.73 102,775.39 95,333.91 91,620.96
MAY 133,495.66 142,483.97 135,949.66 119,122.56 117,154.07
JUNE 99,808.07 106,301.05 97,550.99 101,324.19 112,928.59
JULY 128,757.05 119,092.23 98,115.73 96,444.60 100,722.45
AUGUST 132,315.21 117,996.61 126,910.25 121,918.17 114,244.67
SEPTEMBER 113,469.36 103,994.74 113,855.77 103,720.90 95,950.01

TOTAL $1,375,680.42 $1,362,116.94 $1,338,222.26 $1,285,618.32 $1,274,820.34

5 FY Average FY 18-19 FY 19-20 YTD FY YTD FY
MONTH 13-14  to 17-18 YTD YTD 19-20 vs 18-19 19-20 vs 18-19

OCTOBER $104,138.06 123,182.16 125,114.43 1,932.27 1.57%
NOVEMBER $121,578.10 132,359.17 135,179.02 2,819.85 2.13%
DECEMBER $97,733.96 119,093.34 123,767.09 4,673.75 3.92%
JANUARY $104,109.67 117,496.46 121,308.26 3,811.80 3.24%
FEBRUARY $137,924.93 137,695.15 177,413.13 39,717.98 28.84%
MARCH $93,586.20 105,701.32 116,502.78 10,801.46 10.22%
APRIL $97,495.42 106,390.54  
MAY $129,641.18 146,602.86  
JUNE $103,582.58 123,523.65  
JULY $108,626.41 121,734.09  
AUGUST $122,676.98 136,952.28  
SEPTEMBER $106,198.16 125,563.94  

TOTAL $1,327,291.66 $1,496,294.96 $799,284.71 $63,757.11 8.67%

AEDC Monthly Sales Tax Revenue Analysis

AEDC SALES TAX RECEIPTS
NET PAYMENT RECEIVED

ATHENS, TEXAS (4B, 1/2 Cent)



ATHENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF COMMITMENTS

03/31/2020
PRIOR YEAR
2018 2019 2022 2023 Totals

HVAC AGREEMENT #2 $
HVAC AGREEMENT #3 324,800.00$ $ 6,000.00$ 28,500.00$
HVAC AGREEMENT #4 $ 130,000.00$
BIOMERICS FMI LLC TENANT IMPROVEMENTS 531,089.55$ 468,910.45$ SEE NOTE #2
BIOMERICS FMI LLC 15,000.00$
CLAYTON HOMES $ 60,000.00$ 30,000.00$ 30,000.00$
DILLON MFG AKA EXPRESS PRODUCTS INC 23,000.00$ 12,000.00$ 9,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$
ATHENS SCREEN PRINTING $ 3,000.00$ 1,500.00$ 1,500.00$ 1,500.00$
WINTERS OIL (INFRASTRUCTURE) $ 250,000.00$
OAKWOOD ASSISTED LIVING (INFRASTRUCTURE) $ 250,000.00$

893,889.55$ 1,173,910.45$ 46,500.00$ 63,000.00$ 4,500.00$ 2,181,800.00$

PRIOR YEAR
2018 2019 2019 2020 2020 2021 2021 2022 2022 2023 Totals

2018 2019 TOTAL AMOUNT 60,000.00$
10/25/18 HENDERSON COUNTY FAIRPARK (30,000.00)$
8/15/19 HENDERSON COUNTY FAIRPARK (19,000.00)$
9/1/19 ETX ARBORETUM (5,000.00)$
SEE NOTE #12 6,000.00$ $ $ $ $ 6,000.00$

PRIOR YEAR
2018 2019 2019 2020 2020 2021 2021 2022 2022 2023 Totals

2018 2019 TOTAL AMOUNT 88,036.00$
12/17/18 KATHY'S BOUTIQUE (10,381.11)$
12/17/18 ATHENS TRAILER & TRUCK (2,228.00)$
1/16/19 MARK MCCAIN (8,100.20)$
4/12/19 RELIABLE ONE (12,500.00)$
7/2/19 SILVER LINE ROOFING (9,667.00)$
SEE NOTE #12 45,159.69$ $ $ $ $ 45,159.69$

GRAND TOTAL BALANCE 945,049.24$ 1,173,910.45$ 46,500.00$ 63,000.00$ 4,500.00$ 2,232,959.69$

NOTE #12: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT & BUSINESS ASSISTANCE GRANTS, NO FILE FOUND.VERIFIED PAID TO DATE.
NOTE #2: RENT ABATEMENT OF 60,404.85 IS INCLUDED IN REPAYMENT AGREEMENT BUT NOT CASH.

BUSINESS ASSISTANCE GRANTS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

INDIVIDUAL GRANTS 2019 2020 2020 2021 2021 2022



Athens Economic Development Corporation 
Agenda Memorandum for Board Meeting 

 

AGENDA DATE:  04/21/2020  

DEPARTMENT:  AEDC 

CONTACT:    Joanie Ahlers, Economic Development Director 

SUBJECT:    Consider discussion and possible action regarding the approval of reimbursements 
 to the City of Athens for AEDC expenditures, payroll and 2nd Quarter Admin Fee. 

SUMMARY:   The City of Athens has incurred expenditures on behalf of the AEDC in the 
amounts of $13,163.43 through March 31, 2020. These expenditures include 
contract labor expenses for contract staff, cell phone expenditures for AEDC 
Director, credit card expenditures by the AEDC Director and other operating 
expenditures. In addition to operating expenditures, payroll expenses through 
March 31, 2020 totaled $38,242.41. The 2nd Quarter Administrative Fee is due in 
the amount of $2,700 per the Administrative Services Agreement previously 
approved by the board. 

  
     

BACKGROUND:    N/A 

ISSUE:     N/A   

ALTERNATIVES:  N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $54,105.84 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the board discuss and take action to either approve the 
 request as is or request changes. 



Invoice
To: Athens Economic Development Invoice Date: 03/31/2020

201 W. Corsicana Suite 3 Invoice Number: 190997
Athens, TX 75751

Reimbursement for by COA through 03/31/2020: 

Reimbursable Expenditures - $13,163.43
Payroll Expenditures - $38,242.41
2nd Quarter Administrative Fee - $2,700

Amount Due: $54,105.84

Please Remit Payment To:
CITY OF ATHENS

508 E. TYLER
ATHENS, TEXAS 75751

(903) 675-5131



       4-15-2020  6:07 PM                     D E T A I L   L I S T I N G                           PAGE:     1
      FUND      : 10 -GENERAL FUND                                                  PERIOD TO USE:  Oct-2019  THRU Sep-2020
      DEPT      : N/A                                                               ACCOUNTS: 1300.94         THRU 1300.94
  POST    DATE TRAN #   REFERENCE    PACKET======DESCRIPTION=======  VEND  INV/PO/JE #       NOTE  =====AMOUNT====  ====BALANCE====

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
      1300.94           DT/DF AEDC OPERATIONS
                                 B E G I N N I N G    B A L A N C E                                                           0.19CR

10/09/19 11/21 A90763 CHK: 078004     13264 V FRANKLIN 9/29/19-10/5/ 12610                                   988.00          987.81
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32841             /PO#
10/16/19 10/25 A90211 CHK: 077828     13208 V FRANKLIN 10/6/19-10/12 12610                                   988.00        1,975.81
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32858             /PO#
10/22/19 10/25 A90212 CHK: 077828     13208 V FRANKLIN 10/13/19-10/1 12610                                   988.00        2,963.81
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32873             /PO#
10/30/19 11/08 A90458 CHK: 077926     13234 V FRANKLIN 10/20/19-10/2 12610                                   988.00        3,951.81
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32888             /PO#
10/31/19 11/21 A90869 CHK: 077947     13264 ATTORNEY CHARGES FOR AED 26800                                   697.50        4,649.31
                                     BROWN & HOFMEISTER LLP     INV# 0561-001-39132JLM /PO#
                      =============  OCTOBER ACTIVITY   DB:      4,649.50   CR:           0.00            4,649.50

11/03/19 11/21 A90978 CHK: 078009     13280 ROBERTSON-BROOKSHIRES 11 18760                                    55.66        4,704.97
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# OCT 2019          /PO#
11/03/19 11/21 A90978 CHK: 078009     13280 ROBERTSON-SQ  SQ  SNOWFL 18760                                    16.58        4,721.55
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# OCT 2019          /PO#
11/06/19 11/08 A90459 CHK: 077926     13234 V FRANKLIN 10/27/19-11/2 12610                                   988.00        5,709.55
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32902             /PO#
11/12/19 11/21 A90764 CHK: 078004     13264 V FRANKLIN 11/03/19-11/0 12610                                   963.30        6,672.85
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32916             /PO#
11/19/19 11/21 A90765 CHK: 078004     13264 V FRANKLIN 11/10/19-11/1 12610                                   808.93        7,481.78
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32929             /PO#
11/25/19 12/05 A91080 CHK: 078075     13290 V FRANKLIN 11/17-11/23/1 12610                                   988.00        8,469.78
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32943             /PO#
                      =============  NOVEMBER ACTIVITY  DB:      3,820.47   CR:           0.00            3,820.47

12/03/19  1/03 A91717 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 11/24/19-11/3 12610                                   629.85        9,099.63
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32958             /PO#
12/10/19  1/03 A91719 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 12/1/19-12/7/ 12610                                   988.00       10,087.63
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32973             /PO#
12/13/19  1/03 A91792 CHK: 078202     13337 EDC TRAINING PER DIEM    28190                                    90.75       10,178.38
                                     JOAN AHLERS                INV# 12/12/19          /PO#
12/18/19  1/03 A91721 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 12/8/19-12/14 12610                                 1,284.40       11,462.78
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32988             /PO#
12/23/19  1/03 A91715 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 12/8/19-12/14 12610                                   296.40CR     11,166.38
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33003             /PO#
12/23/19  1/03 A91723 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 12/15/19-12/2 12610                                   988.00       12,154.38
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33004             /PO#
12/31/19  1/16 A91991 CHK: 078349     13350 V FRANKLIN 12/22/19-12/2 12610                                   592.80       12,747.18
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33018             /PO#
12/31/19  1/28 B44351                 12094 RECORD INVOICE FOR EDC          JE# 021194         000203     12,401.38CR        345.80
                      =============  JOURNAL ENTRY NOTES
                      JE TO RECORD REIMBURSEMENT FROM AEDC FOR CONTRACT LABOR
                      STAFF, INSURANCE THAT WAS DISTRIBUTED TO ALL FUNDS, BROWN &
                      HOFMEISTER INVOICE, TRAVEL AND TRAINING FOR JOANIE AHLERS
                      AND 1ST QTR ADM FEE OF $2,700 PER ADMIN AGREEMENT.
                      MQ
                      =============  DECEMBER ACTIVITY  DB:      4,573.80   CR:      12,697.78CR          8,123.98CR

      1300.94           DT/DF AEDC OPERATIONS
                                 B E G I N N I N G    B A L A N C E                                                           0.19CR

10/09/19 11/21 A90763 CHK: 078004     13264 V FRANKLIN 9/29/19-10/5/ 12610                                   988.00          987.81
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32841             /PO#
10/16/19 10/25 A90211 CHK: 077828     13208 V FRANKLIN 10/6/19-10/12 12610                                   988.00        1,975.81
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32858             /PO#
10/22/19 10/25 A90212 CHK: 077828     13208 V FRANKLIN 10/13/19-10/1 12610                                   988.00        2,963.81
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32873             /PO#
10/30/19 11/08 A90458 CHK: 077926     13234 V FRANKLIN 10/20/19-10/2 12610                                   988.00        3,951.81
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32888             /PO#
10/31/19 11/21 A90869 CHK: 077947     13264 ATTORNEY CHARGES FOR AED 26800                                   697.50        4,649.31
                                     BROWN & HOFMEISTER LLP     INV# 0561-001-39132JLM /PO#
                      =============  OCTOBER ACTIVITY   DB:      4,649.50   CR:           0.00            4,649.50

11/03/19 11/21 A90978 CHK: 078009     13280 ROBERTSON-BROOKSHIRES 11 18760                                    55.66        4,704.97
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# OCT 2019          /PO#
11/03/19 11/21 A90978 CHK: 078009     13280 ROBERTSON-SQ  SQ  SNOWFL 18760                                    16.58        4,721.55
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# OCT 2019          /PO#
11/06/19 11/08 A90459 CHK: 077926     13234 V FRANKLIN 10/27/19-11/2 12610                                   988.00        5,709.55
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32902             /PO#
11/12/19 11/21 A90764 CHK: 078004     13264 V FRANKLIN 11/03/19-11/0 12610                                   963.30        6,672.85
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32916             /PO#
11/19/19 11/21 A90765 CHK: 078004     13264 V FRANKLIN 11/10/19-11/1 12610                                   808.93        7,481.78
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32929             /PO#
11/25/19 12/05 A91080 CHK: 078075     13290 V FRANKLIN 11/17-11/23/1 12610                                   988.00        8,469.78
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32943             /PO#
                      =============  NOVEMBER ACTIVITY  DB:      3,820.47   CR:           0.00            3,820.47

12/03/19  1/03 A91717 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 11/24/19-11/3 12610                                   629.85        9,099.63
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32958             /PO#
12/10/19  1/03 A91719 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 12/1/19-12/7/ 12610                                   988.00       10,087.63
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32973             /PO#
12/13/19  1/03 A91792 CHK: 078202     13337 EDC TRAINING PER DIEM    28190                                    90.75       10,178.38
                                     JOAN AHLERS                INV# 12/12/19          /PO#
12/18/19  1/03 A91721 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 12/8/19-12/14 12610                                 1,284.40       11,462.78
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 32988             /PO#
12/23/19  1/03 A91715 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 12/8/19-12/14 12610                                   296.40CR     11,166.38
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33003             /PO#
12/23/19  1/03 A91723 CHK: 078235     13337 V FRANKLIN 12/15/19-12/2 12610                                   988.00       12,154.38
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33004             /PO#

12/31/19  1/28 B44351                 12094 RECORD INVOICE FOR EDC          JE# 021194         000203     12,401.38CR        345.80
                     =============  JOURNAL ENTRY NOTES
                     JE TO RECORD REIMBURSEMENT FROM AEDC FOR CONTRACT LABOR
                     STAFF, INSURANCE THAT WAS DISTRIBUTED TO ALL FUNDS, BROWN &
                     HOFMEISTER INVOICE, TRAVEL AND TRAINING FOR JOANIE AHLERS
                     AND 1ST QTR ADM FEE OF $2,700 PER ADMIN AGREEMENT.
                     MQ
                     =============  DECEMBER ACTIVITY  DB:      4,573.80   CR:      12,697.78CR          8,123.98CR

PAID ON 1ST QTR 
REIMBURSEMENT



       4-15-2020  6:07 PM                     D E T A I L   L I S T I N G                           PAGE:     2
      FUND      : 10 -GENERAL FUND                                                  PERIOD TO USE:  Oct-2019  THRU Sep-2020
      DEPT      : N/A                                                               ACCOUNTS: 1300.94         THRU 1300.94
  POST    DATE TRAN #   REFERENCE    PACKET======DESCRIPTION=======  VEND  INV/PO/JE #       NOTE  =====AMOUNT====  ====BALANCE====

      1300.94           DT/DF AEDC OPERATIONS             * ( CONTINUED ) *

 1/03/20  1/24 A92423 CHK: 078355     13381 QUIGG-MARRIOTT AUSTIN SO 18760                                   143.48          489.28
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# DEC 2019          /PO#
 1/03/20  3/06 A93446 CHK: 078686     13479 QB6020.2                 26290                                   307.00CR        182.28
                                     BXS INSURANCE, INC.        INV# 319039            /PO#
 1/07/20  1/16 A91992 CHK: 078349     13350 V FRANKLIN 12/29/19-1/4/ 12610                                   790.40          972.68
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33032             /PO#
 1/09/20  1/16 A92008 CHK: 078345     13350 JAN 2020 VERIZON CHARGES 17360                                    52.49        1,025.17
                                     VERIZON WIRELESS           INV# 9845934792        /PO#
 1/09/20  1/16 A92008 CHK: 078345     13350 JAN 2020 VERIZON AHLERS  17360                                   488.98        1,514.15
                                     VERIZON WIRELESS           INV# 9845934792        /PO#
 1/14/20  2/17 A92927 CHK: 078591     13420 J AHLERS BUS CARDS       26100                                    40.78        1,554.93
                                     PROFORMA HORIZON TOTAL SO  INV# B325006660A       /PO#
 1/15/20  1/16 A91994 CHK: 078349     13350 VAL FRANKLIN 1/5/20-1/11 12610                                   988.00        2,542.93
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# INV 33045         /PO#
 1/21/20  2/17 A92815 CHK: 078607     13420 V FRANKLIN 01/12/20-01/1 12610                                   988.00        3,530.93
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33061             /PO#
 1/28/20  1/28 B44349                 12093 AEDC 4TH QTR 2019 PR TAX RET    JE# 021193         000202         20.70        3,551.63
                      =============  JOURNAL ENTRY NOTES
                      POSTAGE FOR CERTIFIED LETTERS TO THE IRS FOR 4TH QTR 2019
                      PAYROLL TAX RETURNS. MAILED THE 941, 940, AND W2 COPIES.
                      POSTAGE ORIGINALLY CHARGED TO THE FINANCE DEPT AND WE SHOULD
                      BILL AEDC.
 1/29/20  1/30 B44356                 12095 AEDC 2019 1099'S                JE# 021196         000205          6.90        3,558.53
                      =============  JOURNAL ENTRY NOTES
                      MAILED IRS COPY OF AEDC'S 2019 1099'S. POSTAGE ORIGINALLY
                      CHARGED TO FINANCE DEPT AND WE SHOULD BE AEDC.
                      RP.
 1/29/20  2/17 A92816 CHK: 078607     13420 V FRANKLIN 01/19/20-01/2 12610                                   790.40        4,348.93
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33076             /PO#
                      =============  JANUARY ACTIVITY   DB:      4,310.13   CR:         307.00CR          4,003.13

 2/01/20  3/06 A93447 CHK: 078686     13479 QB6020.2 ADD ARMORY & ED 26290                                 1,461.00        5,809.93
                                     BXS INSURANCE, INC.        INV# 317038            /PO#
 2/03/20  2/25 A93148 CHK: 078611     13450 AHLERS-TEDC MEMBER QB#60 18760                                   525.00        6,334.93
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# JAN CC CHARGES    /PO#
 2/03/20  2/25 A93148 CHK: 078611     13450 AHLERS-AMZN MKTP QB#6001 18760                                    26.29        6,361.22
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# JAN CC CHARGES    /PO#
 2/03/20  2/25 A93148 CHK: 078611     13450 AHLERS-AMZN MKTP QB#6001 18760                                    25.93        6,387.15
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# JAN CC CHARGES    /PO#
 2/03/20  2/25 A93148 CHK: 078611     13450 AHLERS-RAILWAY CAFE QB#6 18760                                    65.21        6,452.36
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# JAN CC CHARGES    /PO#
 2/05/20  2/17 A92817 CHK: 078607     13420 V FRANKLIN 01/26/20-02/0 12610                                   988.00        7,440.36
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33090             /PO#
 2/07/20  2/17 A92840 CHK: 078575     13420 TREE CUT DOWN @ 414 W CO 18860                                   300.00        7,740.36
                                     LUPES TREE SERVICE LLC     INV# 2/7/2020          /PO#
 2/09/20  2/27 A93170 CHK: 078675     13453 QB6015.6  FEB CELL PHONE 17360                                    36.16        7,776.52
                                     VERIZON WIRELESS           INV# 9848004827        /PO#



       4-15-2020  6:07 PM                     D E T A I L   L I S T I N G                           PAGE:     3
      FUND      : 10 -GENERAL FUND                                                  PERIOD TO USE:  Oct-2019  THRU Sep-2020
      DEPT      : N/A                                                               ACCOUNTS: 1300.94         THRU 1300.94
  POST    DATE TRAN #   REFERENCE    PACKET======DESCRIPTION=======  VEND  INV/PO/JE #       NOTE  =====AMOUNT====  ====BALANCE====

      1300.94           DT/DF AEDC OPERATIONS             * ( CONTINUED ) *

 2/09/20  2/27 A93170 CHK: 078675     13453 QB6015.6 CELL PHONE INCE 17360                                    50.00CR      7,726.52
                                     VERIZON WIRELESS           INV# 9848004827        /PO#
 2/11/20  3/29 A94133 CHK: 078849     13522 V FRANKLIN 2/2/20-2/8/20 12610                                   988.00        8,714.52
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33104             /PO#
 2/18/20  3/12 A93496 CHK: 078772     13473 V FRANKLIN 2/9/20-2/15/2 12610                                   988.00        9,702.52
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33116             /PO#
 2/25/20  3/12 A93497 CHK: 078772     13473 V FRANKLIN 2/16/20-2/22/ 12610                                   988.00       10,690.52
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33128             /PO#
 2/29/20  3/12 A93547 CHK: 078726     13473 QB6200 FRANKLIN BACKGROU 22630                                    50.05       10,740.57
                                     INTELLICORP                INV# 7096271           /PO#
                      =============  FEBRUARY ACTIVITY  DB:      6,441.64   CR:          50.00CR          6,391.64

 3/03/20  3/12 A93499 CHK: 078772     13473 V FRANKLIN 2/23/20-2/28/ 12610                                   988.00       11,728.57
                                     WORKCO , INC.              INV# 33142             /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 AHLERS-QB6001.2 AMZN MKT 18760                                    69.99       11,798.56
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 AHLERS-QB6001.2 AMZN MKT 18760                                    15.14       11,813.70
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 AHLERS-QB6060 WWW.DOODLE 18760                                    48.00       11,861.70
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 AHLERS-QB6050 SCHLOTSKY' 18760                                   174.02       12,035.72
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 AHLERS-QB6050 WM SUPERCE 18760                                    35.36       12,071.08
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 AHLERS-QB6050 EB TEXAS C 18760                                    56.58       12,127.66
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 AHLERS-QB6060 NOTARYNOA- 18760                                   189.95       12,317.61
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 QUIGG-UNT COMMERCE MANAG 18760                                   240.00       12,557.61
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/03/20  3/29 A94243 CHK: 078805     13510 AHLERS-QB6001.2 AMZN MKT 18760                                     7.46CR     12,550.15
                                     CITIBANK                   INV# FEB CC CHARGES    /PO#
 3/09/20  3/29 A94135 CHK: 078848     13522 QB6015.6 MARCH 2020 CELL 17360                                    36.16       12,586.31
                                     VERIZON WIRELESS           INV# 9850091211        /PO#
 3/09/20  4/09 A94542 CHK: 078890     13585 V FRANKLIN PHYSICAL      28500                                    75.00       12,661.31
                                     INTEGRITY URGENT CARE      INV# 4026230           /PO#
 3/12/20  3/29 A94155 CHK: 078829     13522 QB6200 FRANKLIN PHYSICAL 21510                                   152.26       12,813.57
                                     NOVA HEALTHCARE            INV# 000001522011      /PO#
 3/16/20  3/29 A94225 CHK: 078838     13522 QB6001.3 POSTAGE FOR CIT 3895                                      1.15       12,814.72
                                     RESERVE ACCOUNT            INV# 3/16/2020         /PO#
 3/19/20  3/19 B44596 CHK 78316 NOVA  12198 QB6200 AHLERS PHYSICAL          JE# 021338         000326        298.66       13,113.38
                      =============  JOURNAL ENTRY NOTES
                      3/19/2020 SS> AEDC HR RELATED CHARGES BOOKED TO COA HR
                      ACCOUNT (512), BUT SHOULD HAVE BEEN BOOKED DIRECTLY TO AEDC.
 3/19/20  3/19 B44596 CHK 78566 INTE  12198 QB6200 AHLERS BACKGROUND        JE# 021338         000326         50.05       13,163.43
                      =============  JOURNAL ENTRY NOTES
                      3/19/2020 SS> AEDC HR RELATED CHARGES BOOKED TO COA HR
                      ACCOUNT (512), BUT SHOULD HAVE BEEN BOOKED DIRECTLY TO AEDC.
                      =============  MARCH ACTIVITY     DB:      2,430.32   CR:           7.46CR          2,422.86

                      =============  ACCOUNT TOTAL      DB:     26,225.86   CR:      13,062.24CR



       4-15-2020  6:07 PM                     D E T A I L   L I S T I N G                           PAGE:     4
      FUND      : 10 -GENERAL FUND                                                  PERIOD TO USE:  Oct-2019  THRU Sep-2020
      DEPT      : N/A                                                               ACCOUNTS: 1300.94         THRU 1300.94
  POST    DATE TRAN #   REFERENCE    PACKET======DESCRIPTION=======  VEND  INV/PO/JE #       NOTE  =====AMOUNT====  ====BALANCE====

      1300.94           DT/DF AEDC OPERATIONS             * ( CONTINUED ) *

*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-              000 ERRORS IN THIS REPORT!     *-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*-*

                                        ** REPORT TOTALS **      --- DEBITS ---         --- CREDITS ---
                                  BEGINNING BALANCES:                      0.00                  0.19CR
                                  REPORTED ACTIVITY:                  26,225.86             13,062.24CR
                                  ENDING BALANCES:                    26,225.86             13,062.43CR
                                  TOTAL FUND ENDING BALANCE:          13,163.43

  ENDING BALANCES:                    26,225.86    
  TOTAL FUND ENDING BALANCE:          13,163.43



 4-15-2020 06:36 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   1
                                                       EXPENDITURES REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  MARCH 31ST, 2020
10 -GENERAL FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  50.00

                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

95-AEDC PAYROLL
===============

61-PERSONNEL SERVICES
 10-595-6100     LONGEVITY                      468            0.00            0.00            0.00          468.00     0.00
 10-595-6101     SALARIES                   117,786        9,146.54       24,455.38            0.00       93,330.62    20.76
 10-595-6102     OVERTIME                         0            0.00            0.00            0.00            0.00     0.00
 10-595-6103     FICA                         9,608          737.48        2,164.40            0.00        7,443.26    22.53
 10-595-6104     GROUP INSURANCE             15,639          651.19        2,549.92            0.00       13,088.71    16.31
 10-595-6105     RETIREMENT                  19,752        1,548.10        4,525.07            0.00       15,227.14    22.91
 10-595-6106     WORKERS COMPENSATION            63            0.00           33.14            0.00           30.35    52.20
 10-595-6109     CERTIFICATE PAY                  0            0.00            0.00            0.00            0.00     0.00
 10-595-6110     VACATION BUY BACK            2,335            0.00            0.00            0.00        2,335.17     0.00
 10-595-6111     ACCRUED VACATION PAYOUT          0            0.00            0.00            0.00            0.00     0.00
 10-595-6112     ACCRUED SICK LEAVE PAYO          0            0.00            0.00            0.00            0.00     0.00
 10-595-6117     SICK BUYBACK                 1,401            0.00            0.00            0.00        1,401.10     0.00
 10-595-6121     COVID-19 (EPSLA)                 0            0.00            0.00            0.00            0.00     0.00
 10-595-6122     COVID-19 (EFMLEA)                0            0.00            0.00            0.00            0.00     0.00
 10-595-6123     COVID-19 (ADMIN)                 0          464.50          464.50            0.00 (        464.50)    0.00
 10-595-6141     CAR ALLOWANCE                3,600          300.00        1,050.00            0.00        2,550.00    29.17
 10-595-6142     MOVING ALLOWANCE                 0            0.00        3,000.00            0.00 (      3,000.00)    0.00
 10-595-6143     CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE             0            0.00            0.00            0.00            0.00     0.00
   TOTAL 61-PERSONNEL SERVICES              170,652       12,847.81       38,242.41            0.00      132,409.85    22.41
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 TOTAL 95-AEDC PAYROLL                      170,652       12,847.81       38,242.41            0.00      132,409.85    22.41
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENSES                              170,652       12,847.81       38,242.41            0.00      132,409.85    22.41
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

 YEAR TO DATE     
    ACTUAL        

___________________

          0.00    
     24,455.38    
          0.00    
      2,164.40    
      2,549.92    
      4,525.07    
         33.14    
          0.00    
          0.00    
          0.00    
          0.00    
          0.00    
          0.00    
          0.00    
        464.50    
      1,050.00    
      3,000.00    
          0.00    
     38,242.41    

___________________

     38,242.41    
___________________

     38,242.41    
==============  ==



8 of 11



Athens Economic Development Corporation 
Agenda Memorandum for Board Meeting 

AGENDA DATE:  04/21/2020  

DEPARTMENT:  AEDC

CONTACT:    Joanie Ahlers, City of Athens Economic Development Director 

SUBJECT:    Biomerics FMI, LLC Draw #11  

 

SUMMARY:   Biomerics FMI, LLC submitted Draw Request #11 on April 15, 2020 for a  
  total of $63,172.70, less retainage of $6,317.27 for a net payment amount   
  of $56,855.43.  

 
    Dub Hirst and City of Athens Building Inspector are in the process of scheduling  

  inspections and any issues discovered concerning these reimbursement requests  
  will be brought to the board prior to releasing payment. 

 
     

BACKGROUND:    N/A 

ISSUE:     N/A   

 

ALTERNATIVES:  N/A 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Increase in Note Receivable and FSB Note Payable

 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the board discuss and take action to approve the 
 reimbursement request contingent upon approval of inspection reports. 



DRAW 
# Description  Amount Due  Payment 

 Outstanding 
Balance 

Date Received by 
Biomerics  OR Date 

Check Written
1 January 2019 invoices 89,373.27$         80,435.94$         8,937.33$          3/7/2019
2 February 2019 invoices 58,580.16$         52,722.14$         5,858.02$          3/19/2019
3 March~April 2019 invoices 74,688.80$         67,219.92$         7,468.88$          5/17/2019
3 Wage True Up 25,373.60$         22,836.24$         2,537.36$          5/17/2019
4 May 2019 invoices & wages 45,402.17$         40,861.95$         4,540.22$          6/13/2019
4 May (2) 2019 invoice 41,831.62$         37,648.46$         4,183.16$          6/13/2019
5 June (1) 2019 Invoices 49,981.07$         44,982.96$         4,998.11$          7/3/2019
5 June (2) 2019 Invoices 165,351.43$       148,816.29$       16,535.14$        7/3/2019
6 August (1) 2019 Invoices 9,131.22$           8,218.10$           913.12$             9/12/2019
7 September 2019 Invoices 37,066.12$         33,359.51$         3,706.61$          10/24/2019
7 Remove Original Submission (37,066.12)$       (33,359.51)$       (3,706.61)$         10/24/2019
7 Board Approved Payment - Sept 2019 30,386.17$         27,347.55$         3,038.62$          10/24/2019
7 Restroom Trailer & Employee Pay 6,679.95$           6,011.96$           667.99$             12/17/2019
8 Original October & November 2019 Draw 105,669.35$       95,102.42$         10,566.94$        12/17/2019
8 Remove Original Draw #8 for Corrections (105,669.35)$     (95,102.42)$       (10,566.94)$       12/17/2019
8 Revised Draw #8 - Removed Hendry & TSC 102,375.48$       92,137.93$         10,237.55$        12/17/2019
9 ADD back TSC from Draw #8 but not Hendry 93.87$                84.48$                9.39$                 2/14/2020
9 December 2019 invoices 55,776.32$         50,198.69$         5,577.63$          2/14/2020
10 January 2020 & Multiple Periods 93,931.75$         84,538.58$         9,393.17$          3/12/2020
11 February 2020 & Multiple Periods 63,172.70$         56,855.43$         6,317.27$          4/15/2020

912,129.58$      820,916.63$      91,212.96$       

Amount Due Payment
 Outstanding 

Balance 
CHECK TO WRITE FOR DRAW #11 63,172.70$         556,855.43$        6,317.27$          

Biomerics Capital Improvement
Draw Schedule

Totals:



Date Document Number Name Debit Paid Date PD Notes

7/19/2019 2006229-00 Vallen Distrubution 5,948.00$                         5431 3/30/20
2/14/2020 6301 Hendry Electric 3,650.00$                         5313 2/28/20
2/25/2020 6303 Hendry Electric 6,625.00$                         5363 3/13/20
1/15/2020 2172 McGowan Plumbing 8,065.84$                         5367 3/13/20
2/26/2020 2023149-00 Vallen Distrubution 16,920.72$                       5431 3/30/20
3/2/2020 2183 McGowan Plumbing 9,963.14$                         5448 4/2/20
3/20/2020 6307 Hendry Electric 12,000.00$                       5420 3/30/20

63,172.70$                      

Employee Pay Period Payroll Date Hrs Gross Pay % to TI Project Amount to Bill
Shane Lindsey 2/24-3/8 3/12/2020 0.00 0% $0.00
Ramon Castaneda 2/24-3/8 3/12/2020 100% $0.00
Dakota Lindsey 2/24-3/8 3/12/2020 0.00 100% $0.00
Shane Lindsey 3/9-3/22 3/26/2020 0.00 0% $0.00
Ramon Castaneda 3/9-3/22 3/26/2020 100% $0.00
Dakota Lindsey 3/9-3/22 3/26/2020 0.00 100% $0.00
Labor Wage Total $0.00

63,172.70$               
-$                         No wages to move

63,172.70$               Total Due

Biomerics
TI Project 1702 / 1704















































Athens Economic Development Corporation 
Agenda Memorandum for Board Meeting 

 

AGENDA DATE:  04/21/2020  

DEPARTMENT:  AEDC 

CONTACT:    Joanie Ahlers, ED Director 

SUBJECT:    Notes Payable and Receivable 

        Item #6  

SUMMARY:     Discuss interest only payments for outstanding AEDC loans during COVID-19 
State and County Orders 

        

FISCAL IMPACT: Deferment of payments some financial impact to AEDC budget, depending upon 
the term of loan payment deferments and structure of repayment.  

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that the board discuss and take action concerning  
interest only payments. 



Notes Payable  AS OF: 4/16/20 

BANK LOAN # PROJECT  LOAN BALANCE 
FIRST STATE BANK (FSB) 8602 BIOMERICS 743,343.73$                   
FIRST STATE BANK (FSB) 8190 AIRPORT 464,496.35$                   
FIRST STATE BANK (FSB) 8620 MORTGAGE APC 90,433.63$                      
VERA BANK 3044 INDUS PK II 98.36 ACRES 318,959.27$                   
VERA BANK 6211 INDUS PL II INFRASTRUCTURE 276,665.63$                   

Notes Receivable  AS OF: 4/16/20 

CUSTOMER LOAN CONTRACT AMOUNT  LOAN BALANCE 

BIOMERICS TI LOAN 1,000,000.00$                               762,197.23$                   

BIOMERICS ABATEMENT 60,404.85$                                     57,277.08$                      

EXTREME ENGINEERING $250K 250,000.00$                                   
 PAID OFF AFTER APRIL 
2020 PAYMENT 

EXTREME ENGINEERING $480K 480,000.00$                                   229,803.19$                   

EXTREME ENGINEERING RLF 87,545.00$                                     
 PAID OFF AFTER APRIL 
2020 PAYMENT 

HVAC #1 503,304.00$                                   348,294.84$                   
HVAC #3 324,800.00$                                   290,555.93$                   
PURSELLEY CABINETS LOAN 30,077.25$                                     9,974.20$                        



 MONTHLY 
PAYMENT 

 MONTHLY 
PRINCIPAL 

 MONTHLY 
INTEREST 

8,591.47$          6,905.82$          1,685.65$          
4,504.86$          3,428.64$          1,076.22$          
4,220.26$          4,012.48$          207.78$             
6,576.69$          5,957.48$          619.21$             
4,899.55$          4,210.24$          689.31$             

 MONTHLY 
PAYMENT 

 MONTHLY 
PRINCIPAL 

 MONTHLY 
INTEREST 

 VARIES UNTIL 
AFTER 7/1/20 TBD TBD
 VARIES UNTIL 
AFTER 7/1/20 TBD TBD

1,440.95$          1,440.95$          57.64$               
4,634.92$          4,050.28$          584.64$             

1,573.07$          1,569.15$          3.92$                 
5,216.16$          3,895.45$          1,320.71$          
6,055.25$          4,947.11$          1,108.14$          

250.00$             216.03$             33.97$               



NOTES
4/1/20 PAYMENT - INTEREST & TOTAL PAYMENT AMOUNT VARIES EACH MONTH
4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH
4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH
4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH
4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH

NOTES

4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH
4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH

4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH
4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH
4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH
4/1/20 PAYMENT - P&I BREAKDOWN VARIES EACH MONTH



Athens Economic Development Corporation 
Agenda Memorandum for Board Meeting 

 

AGENDA DATE:  03/17/20  

PERSON PRESENTING:   Joanie Ahlers, AEDC Economic Development Director 

SUBJECT:     Final Draft for AEDC Action Plan 

ITEM #    #7 

SUMMARY:      During the Special Meeting for strategic planning AEDC Board in 
February, the AEDC Board, City Council and the AMWA Board and staff 
all met to work on the City’s Economic Development Action Plan for 2020. 
Attached is the final Draft as prepared for AEDC by Mr. Greg Last of EDP 
Best Practices. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the approval of the AEDC’s 2020 Action Plan and 
directs Staff to present it to Athens City Council for acceptance. 



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 1 

 

 

 
 
 

Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 
2020 Ac on Plan 

 

Prepared By 
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Will Traxson, President 
John Trent, Vice-President 

Carmen Hunt, Secretary 

Cliff Bomer, Treasurer 
Danny Tidmore 

 

Randy Jones 
Morgan Jones 

Athens Municipal Water Authority 
Mike Peek, President 

Frank Lunceford, Vice-President 
Donald A. Foster, Secretary 

Marty Lindsay 
Mark Carroll 

Athens City Council 
Monte Montgomery, Mayor 

Toni Clay, Place 1 
Aaron Smith, Place 2 

Edward McCain, Place 3 
Robert Gross, Place 4 

 ContribuƟng Staff 
Elizabeth Borstad, City Manager 

Ed Gatlin, ExecuƟve Director, AMWA  
Joanie Ahlers, Econ. Dev. Director 

 Assisted By 
                           EDP Best PracƟces, LLC 
                           Greg Last, CEO 
                           www.EDPBestPracƟces.com 

               
                
               

Google Earth 



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 2 

T A B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S  
IntroducƟon 
  2 Community Facts 
  2 LocaƟon 
  2 AcƟon Plan Purpose 
  2 AcƟon Plan Process 
 Establishment  
  3 AuthorizaƟon 
  3 Sales Tax ElecƟon 
  3 ArƟcles of IncorporaƟon 
  3 Bylaws 
OrganizaƟonal 
  3 MeeƟngs 
  3 Staffing 
  3 Board Membership 
  3 Annual MeeƟng 
  3 Mission Statement  
AEDC Financials 
  4 Sales Tax Revenues 
  4 Total Revenues 
  4 Expenditures 
  4 Fund Balance 
ExisƟng Resources 
  5 Mapping, website, policies, etc. 
AcƟviƟes & Projects 
  6  AcƟviƟes Summary 
Analysis  
  7 SWOT Analysis – City 
  9 SWOT Analysis – AEDC 
Goals / ObjecƟves / PrioriƟes 
11 PrioriƟzed ObjecƟves  
14 Goals & ObjecƟves Summary 
17 Mission-Goals-ObjecƟves Report  
Appendices 
19 A - Future Land Use Plan  
20 B - Previous E.D. Strategic Plans 
21 C - Terms & DefiniƟons 
 

I N T R O D U C T I O N  
The City of Athens (City) is located southeast of the 
Dallas / Fort Worth region of north central Texas .   
Community Facts:  Following are some brief facts 
about the City of Athens, Texas.  

Incorporated in 1902 
2010 Census esƟmated populaƟon of 12,706 
2019 esƟmated populaƟon of 12,797 
Approximately 17 square miles 

LocaƟon in the Greater DFW Region:   

AcƟon Plan Purpose:  This AcƟon Plan (Plan) is 
intended to idenƟfy, organize and prioriƟze goals and 
objecƟves providing direcƟon for the Athens 
Economic Development CorporaƟon (AEDC) Board. 
Process: Following is the process used to prepare this 
AcƟon Plan. 
1. IdenƟfy all organizaƟonal documents, budget,  

resources, prior projects and summarize in Plan 
2. Distribute Pre-MeeƟng SWOT and ObjecƟves 

forms to members of the AEDC Board, City 
Council and Athens Municipal Water Authority 
(AMWA) for iniƟal ideas 

3. Summarize all submiƩed SWOT ideas and 
condense common ideas into SWOT statements 

4. Summarize all submiƩed ObjecƟves and 
condense common ideas into ObjecƟves 

5. Discuss / review all input and create finalized 
Goals & ObjecƟves list 

6. Distribute a forced-ranking system to the Board 
for prioriƟzaƟon of all ObjecƟves 

7. Summarize prioriƟzed ObjecƟves 



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 3 

3) IdenƟficaƟon of strategies to coordinate 
public, private, military and academic 
resources to develop and enhance business 
opportuniƟes for all ciƟzens of Athens. 

4) IdenƟficaƟon of strategies and provide for 
implementaƟon of idenƟfied strategies for 
direct economic development as defined in 
this SecƟon. 

B) The Board shall review and update its overall 
economic development plan each year to ensure 
that said plan is up to date with the current 
economic climate and is capable of meeƟng 
current economic development needs of the City. 

C) The Board shall expend, in accordance with State 
law and on approval of the City, the tax funds 
received by it on direct economic development 
where such expenditures will have a direct 
benefit to the ciƟzens of the City.  “Direct 
Economic Development” shall mean the 
expenditure of such tax funds for programs that 
directly accomplish or aid in the retenƟon or 
creaƟon of idenƟfiable exisƟng jobs including job 
training and / or planning and research acƟviƟes 
necessary to promote said job creaƟon or 
retenƟon.” 

O R G A N I Z A T I O N A L  
MeeƟngs:  The AEDC Board typically meets at the 
Athens Partnership Center at 10 a.m. on the third 
Tuesday of each month. 
Staffing:  The funcƟons of the AEDC are administered 
by the Economic Development Director, an 
employee of the City.  There is currently an 
addiƟonal temp employee, and that posiƟon is 
currently adverƟsed to change to a FTE employee.  
Board Membership:  The AEDC Board is composed of 
seven (7) members, appointed by the Council for two
-year terms.  These members are reflected on the 
cover of this AcƟon Plan.  Board members are not 
compensated for their commitment.   
Annual MeeƟng: Hold an Annual meeƟng in October, 
during which they shall elect officers including 
President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer. 
Mission Statement:  The Board has adopted the 
following mission statement: 
“The Athens Economic Development Corpora on 
will enhance the quality of life for the ci zens of 
Athens, Texas by leading and facilita ng 
economic growth.” 

E S T A B L I S H M E N T  
AuthorizaƟon:  The AEDC was authorized for 
establishment by SecƟon 4B of the Development 
CorporaƟon Act of 1979 (The Act) as amended. 
Sales Tax ElecƟon:  On May 5, 1990 the residents of 
the City approved the adopƟon of an addiƟonal one-
half of one percent Sales and Use Tax for projects 
authorized by SecƟon 4B of the Act.  
ArƟcles of IncorporaƟon: The ArƟcles of 
IncorporaƟon (ArƟcles) were filed with the State of 
Texas on September 15, 2005. 
ArƟcle Four, Purpose, states that “The Corpora on is 
organized exclusively for the purposes of enhancing 
economic development ac vi es for the City of 
Athens, as provided by the Development corpora on 
Act of 1979, as amended”. 

AEDC Bylaws:  On October 8, 1990, the City Council 
approved ResoluƟon 29-90 authorizing and 
approving the Bylaws for the AEDC.  The first 
amendment of the Bylaws was adopted by the Board 
on November 17, 2015.   
Bylaws, SecƟon III, Purpose, states that “The purpose 
of the AEDC is to promote, assist, and enhance 
economic development in compliance with the 
provisions of law, with focus on:  
A) Business retenƟon, expansion, and aƩracƟon to 

create, expand or retain primary jobs; 
B) Development, improvement and maintenance of a 

posiƟve business environment;  
C) Support of community development iniƟaƟves 

that directly benefit business objecƟves;” 
Bylaws, SecƟon 5.16, General DuƟes of the Board, 
states “The Board is hereby authorized to perform 
the following duƟes: 
A) Develop an overall economic development plan 

for the City which shall included and set forth 
intermiƩent and / or short term goals which the 
Board deems necessary to accomplish compliance 
with its overall economic development plan.  Such 
plan shall be approved by the City Council.  The 
overall development plan developed by the Board 
shall be one that includes the following elements:  
1) An economic development strategy to 

permanently bolster the business climate 
throughout the City. 

2) Strategies to fully uƟlize the assets of the City 
which enhance economic development. 



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 4 

 
F I N A N C I A L S  

Following are major financial aspects of the AEDC.  All data reflect a Fiscal Year of October 1 to September 31.   
Sales Tax Revenue:  The most significant revenue for the AEDC is generated by the one-half percent (1/2%) sales 
tax approved by the elecƟon previously discussed as reflected in the following chart:  

Total Revenues:  Total revenues for the AEDC are reflected in the following chart:  

Expenditures:  Expenditures by the AEDC must be approved by the Council prior to expenditure.  This may be 
accomplished via the approval of the budget by Council, or a more formal hearing of the project and proposed 
expenditures.  Actual expenditures over the past several years are reflected in the following chart: 

Fund Balance:  A conservaƟve approach to budgeƟng and expenditures has maintained an appropriate fund 
balance.  The AEDC fund balances over the past several years are reflected in the following chart: 



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 5 

Available ProperƟes LisƟng* 
The AEDC maintains a robust lisƟng of available 
property and buildings on its website 

AEDC Owned Real Estate* 
The 138 acre Athens Industrial Park which has 
sites available (A promoƟonal video has also 
been prepared to highlight the Industrial Park) 
Six (6) acres on Flat Creek Road 
296 acres on Airport Road 

IncenƟves* 
The City has not formally adopted any incenƟve 
policies, but has used or is willing to use the 
following incenƟves. 

Tax abatement 
Chapter 380 Agreements - Sales Tax Grants 
Infrastructure incenƟves 
Employment incenƟves 
RetenƟon and expansion incenƟves 
Low interest loans (USDA program) 
Freeport ExempƟon: The City, County and school 
offer a Freeport ExempƟon for various types of 
goods if they have been detained in the state for 
175 days or less for the purpose of assembly, 
storage, manufacturing, processing or fabricaƟng 
Foreign Trade Zone: The FTZ gives companies the 
opportunity to defer and possibly reduce duty 
paid on goods traded across naƟonal borders. 
Goods may be assembled, packaged, or 
warehoused at a Foreign Trade Zone.   

Grant Programs* 
The AEDC has administered the following grants in 
the past. 

Business Assistance Grant: A matching-grant 
program for properƟes / business owners 
located along the west, north and south 
corridors of Athens who are looking to improve 
distressed properƟes.  
Community Development Grants: Designed to 
provide grants for eligible projects which 
promote sports, cultural, entertainment and 
community projects that aƩract tourism and 
contribute to quality of life, business 
development and growth of Athens sales tax 
revenue.  

Prior ED Strategic Plans 
A brief summary is provided in Appendix B for each 
of two prior Economic Development Strategic Plans. 

R E S O U R C E S  
The AEDC currently uƟlizes the following resources 
to help in their efforts. 
AEDC Website - www.AthensTexasEDC.com 
The AEDC maintains a professional website 
dedicated to purposes of the AEDC.  Significant effort 
is put into the maintenance and update of 
informaƟon available on the website.  *Represents 
items available on the website. 
City Maps 
The City maintains a web-based Geographic 
InformaƟon System (GIS) mapping system including 
the following maps. 

Future Land Use Plan (Appendix B) 
AEDC Maps* 
The following AEDC maps are available. 

Three (3) locaƟon maps are available showing 
naƟonal, Texas and local locaƟons 

Appraisal District Maps 
The Henderson County Appraisal District maintains a 
GIS mapping system including the following maps. 

Parcel maps 
ExisƟng zoning 

Comprehensive Master Plan Update 
The City engaged Norris Design to assist with an 
update to the Comprehensive Master Plan (Comp 
Plan) and the process is currently underway. 
Data* 
The AEDC maintains significant data on their website 
including:  

Talent: labor force, wages, commute paƩerns, 
employment taxes and mandated benefits, 
higher educaƟon / vocaƟonal training faciliƟes 
Data: Market / transportaƟon access, uƟliƟes, 
taxaƟon, demographics, quality of life, retail 

Business Info* 
Business highlights and tesƟmonials are provided 
for many companies on the website 
Business RetenƟon & Expansion: AEDC maintains 
a robust BRE program to assist exisƟng 
businesses in the City 
Available Jobs LisƟng: AEDC maintains a list of 
jobs available with community businesses 



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 6 

A C T I V I T I E S  S U M M A R Y  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Following is a summary of acƟviƟes and projects currently in progress or completed in recent years.   



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 7 

S W O T  A N A L Y S I S  
City of Athens, Texas 

ParƟcipants provided SWOT ideas pre-meeƟng and with discussion.   

STRENGTHS - City of Athens 
What are our strengths? How do we build upon them? 

LocaƟon near DFW / Tyler Emphasize advantages with markeƟng and website 
Small-town quality of life Emphasize advantages with markeƟng and website 
Engaged / progressive-minded leadership Engage City leadership in implemenƟng objecƟves 
Strong leadership in key service areas Engage City leadership in implemenƟng objecƟves 
Proximity to natural ameniƟes Emphasize advantages with markeƟng and website 
Excellent highway connecƟvity Emphasize advantages with markeƟng and website 
Large trade area as County Seat Develop data to highlight trade area 
Availability of water Develop data to highlight availability of water 

Fiscally responsible ConƟnue fiscal responsibility while pursuing 
opportuniƟes 

ReputaƟon as “ReƟrement Friendly” Strengthen "ReƟrement Community" message 
AcƟve / successful regional tourism draws Assist in funding events that benefit business 
Downtown Support programs to revitalize the downtown area 
Availability of medical services Develop data on the availability of medical services 
Availability of Community College Develop data on the assets / capabiliƟes of college 

WEAKNESSES - City of Athens 
What are our weaknesses? How do we reduce or eliminate them? 

Lack of shared vision with other taxing enƟƟes Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 

Lack of diverse housing choices Adopt a Plan addressing housing challenges and 
opportuniƟes 

Distance to commercial airports Develop graphics showing commercial airports 
PoliƟcal environment Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 
Maintenance of street infrastructure IdenƟfy / fund infrastructure that supports business 
ReputaƟon of hard to work with by businesses A program to engage builders / brokers / developers  
NegaƟve percepƟon of Athens ISD Engage the ISD leadership team and market posiƟves 
Inadequate broadband Internet service Pursue enhanced Internet / Cellular service 
Maintenance of water / sewer infrastructure IdenƟfy / fund infrastructure that supports business 
Inadequate communicaƟons with ciƟzens, boards Enhance relaƟonships with allies / stakeholders  

Business vacancies on the square Engage downtown merchants for the beƩerment of 
downtown 

Low household salaries Target incenƟves toward higher paying jobs 
Inadequate number of food-service establishments Develop resources to aƩract retail and restaurants 
Lack of ameniƟes for workforce ages Develop resources to aƩract retail and restaurants 
Entrance to City from the West Adopt a Redevelopment Plan  
PercepƟon of restricƟve building codes Pursue enhanced devel. / permiƫng processes 
Downtown traffic and parking Support programs to revitalize the downtown area 
Some with desire to fight growth Support Planning efforts to manage growth 
Inadequate Police staƟon Likely not AEDC eligible expense 
Lack of City support for tax incenƟves Adopt a comprehensive IncenƟves Policy 
No rail services Engage the area rail service provider 

No connecƟvity to Interstate Highway Develop data / graphics showing connecƟvity to 
highways 

County-wide drug problems effect on labor force Understand and represent the available workforce 

*Items shown in red text are included in the ObjecƟves Summary 

Page 1 of 2



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 8 

S W O T  A N A L Y S I S  
City of Athens, Texas 

ParƟcipants provided SWOT ideas pre-meeƟng and with discussion.   

OPPORTUNITIES - City of Athens 
What are our opportuniƟes? How do we take advantage of them? 

Enhance relaƟonships with ED allies / stakeholders Enhance relaƟonships with allies / stakeholders  
Enhancements to the Square Support programs to revitalize the downtown area 
Development around / near Loop 7 Develop a Sites & Buildings Summary 
Managing growth to our benefit Support Planning efforts to manage growth 
Redevelopment of older neighborhoods Adopt a Redevelopment Plan  
Enhancements / expansion to the Airport IdenƟfy and fund Airport enhancements 
Cain Center Market ameniƟes for families and acƟve adults 
Texan Theater Market ameniƟes for families and acƟve adults 
Annual Events Assist in funding events that benefit business 
ConƟnue growth as reƟrement community Strengthen "ReƟrement Community" message 
Room for growth / expansion Support Planning efforts to manage growth 

THREATS - City of Athens 
What are our threats? How do we overcome or minimize them? 

MispercepƟons regarding schools/educaƟon system Engage the ISD leadership team and market posiƟves 
Failing to prepare for the future Support Planning efforts to manage growth 
Failure to pursue / communicate a shared vision Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 
Failure to maintain water / sewer infrastructure IdenƟfy / fund infrastructure that supports business 
PercepƟon as “ReƟrement Community” only Market ameniƟes for families and acƟve adults 
Declining populaƟon Understand and represent the available workforce 
City’s percepƟon as inaƩenƟve to issues  City to emphasize in communicaƟon programs 
ConƟnued loss of exisƟng businesses Implement a comprehensive BRE program 
No jobs for secondary educaƟon grads Understand and represent the available workforce 
Not enough emphasis on public safety Likely not an AEDC eligible expense 

New housing outside city limits Adopt a Plan addressing housing challenges and 
opportuniƟes 

ConƟnued decline of the west entry corridor Adopt a Redevelopment Plan  
Drug problems (whether real or perceived) Understand and represent the available workforce 

ConservaƟve spending misses growth opportuniƟes ConƟnue fiscal responsibility while pursuing 
opportuniƟes 

High total taxaƟon TBD 
PotenƟal loss of future growth areas Support Planning efforts to manage growth 

*Items shown in red text are included in the ObjecƟves Summary 

Page 2 of 2



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 9 

S W O T  A N A L Y S I S  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

ParƟcipants provided SWOT ideas pre-meeƟng and with discussion.   

STRENGTHS - Athens EDC 
What are our strengths? How do we build upon them? 

Financial strengths ConƟnue fiscal responsibility while pursuing 
opportuniƟes 

Board Member commitment to AEDC purpose Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 
Good diversificaƟon in Board Members Establish aspiraƟons for makeup of the Board 
Programs focused on BRE Implement a comprehensive BRE program 
Programs focused on growth Support Planning efforts to manage growth 
Progressive approach Support Planning efforts to manage growth 
Good relaƟonships between Board Members Establish aspiraƟons for makeup of the Board 
Capable and moƟvated Staff IdenƟfy training needed / desired by Board and Staff 
ExisƟng and successful businesses Implement a comprehensive BRE program 

WEAKNESSES - Athens EDC 
What are our weaknesses? How do we reduce or eliminate them? 

Changes in leadership structure / direcƟon Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 
Undefined fit for AEDC in future growth Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 
Unfocused markeƟng efforts Develop a MarkeƟng & PromoƟon Plan 
Lack of obvious growth / benefits of AEDC BeƩer communicate EDC programs / successes  
Limited number of shovel ready properƟes Develop a Sites & Buildings Summary 

Weak partner in Chamber of Commerce Engage the COC regarding roles for beƩerment of 
businesses 

Lack of transparency / communicaƟon with 
community BeƩer communicate EDC programs / successes  

Historic focus limited to industrial growth Develop a MarkeƟng & PromoƟon Plan 

*Items shown in red text are included in the ObjecƟves Summary 

Page 1 of 2



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 10 

S W O T  A N A L Y S I S  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

ParƟcipants provided SWOT ideas pre-meeƟng and with discussion.   

OPPORTUNITIES - Athens EDC 
What are our opportuniƟes? How do we take advantage of them? 

Enhance coordinaƟon / partnerships with other 
enƟƟes IdenƟfy and engage allies and stakeholders 

Support expansion of exisƟng businesses Implement a comprehensive BRE program 
Expanding infrastructure out to the Loop IdenƟfy / fund infrastructure that supports business 
Develop a shared vision with executable objecƟves Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 
Prospect acƟvity and interest Emphasize advantages with markeƟng and website 
ImplementaƟon of workforce training resources Understand and represent the available workforce 
Strengthen businesses through events / tourism Assist in funding events that benefit business 
Renewed enthusiasm for Director / Board IdenƟfy training needed / desired by Board and Staff 
Pursue developing an addiƟonal business park Evaluate opportuniƟes to acquire EDC properƟes 
IdenƟfy addiƟonal real estate opportuniƟes Evaluate opportuniƟes to acquire EDC properƟes 
Available sites and buildings Develop a Sites & Buildings Summary 
RevitalizaƟon of downtown Support programs to revitalize the downtown area 
Incoming execuƟves also bringing new business Develop a MarkeƟng & PromoƟon Plan 

Implement affordable housing programs Adopt a Plan addressing housing challenges and 
opportuniƟes 

Balancing aƩracƟon efforts with retenƟon efforts Implement a comprehensive BRE program 
AƩracƟon of new commercial investment Develop a MarkeƟng & PromoƟon Plan 
AƩracƟon of high-volume water users Develop data to highlight availability of water 

ConƟnued investment in City infrastructure IdenƟfy and fund infrastructure that supports 
business growth 

Establish a rail site (TOD) for passengers Engage the area rail service provider 

Establish vocaƟonal training programs with allies Work with allies to develop vocaƟonal training 
programs 

Expand markeƟng efforts to “greater” Athens Develop a MarkeƟng & PromoƟon Plan 
THREATS - Athens EDC 

What are our threats? How do we overcome or minimize them? 
Not planning for the future Support Planning efforts to manage growth 
DeterioraƟon of City relaƟonship Provide an annual report at a joint Council meeƟng 
Inability to work with other taxing enƟƟes Enhance relaƟonships with allies / stakeholders  

CompeƟƟon from other EDC’s Monitor acƟviƟes / programs of compeƟng ciƟes for 
Best PracƟces 

Lack of focus on primary objecƟves Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 
Undefined / unclear expectaƟons Adopt an AcƟon Plan and implement objecƟves 
Lack of available labor Understand and represent the available workforce 
Impact of business closings Implement a comprehensive BRE program 
PotenƟal for reduced commitment from Board IdenƟfy training needed / desired by Board and Staff 
Reduced sales tax revenues due to online retail Develop resources to aƩract retail and restaurants 
Not delivering / communicaƟng results from tax 
dollar spending BeƩer communicate EDC programs / successes  

Not adapƟng to organizaƟonal changes Provide an annual report at a joint Council meeƟng 

*Items shown in red text are included in the ObjecƟves Summary 

Page 2 of 2



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 11 

P R I O R I T I Z E D  O B J E C T I V E S  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Following are the results of the prioriƟzaƟon of the ObjecƟves adopted by the parƟcipants.  

Page 1 of 3



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 12 

P R I O R I T I Z E D  O B J E C T I V E S  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Page 2 of 3



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 13 

P R I O R I T I Z E D  O B J E C T I V E S  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Page 3 of 3



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 14 

G O A L S  &  O B J E C T I V E S  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Following is a summary of the Goals & ObjecƟves sorted by Goals (tan rows).   

Page 1 of 3



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 15 

G O A L S  &  O B J E C T I V E S  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Following is a summary of the Goals & ObjecƟves sorted by Goals (tan rows).   

Page 2 of 3



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 16 

G O A L S  &  O B J E C T I V E S  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Following is a summary of the Goals & ObjecƟves sorted by Goals (tan rows).   

Page 3 of 3



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 17 

M - G - O  P R O G R E S S  R E P O R T  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

This Mission - Goals - Objec ves Progress Report summarizes the Priori zed Objec ves in a  
format that allows monitoring and reporƟng of progress on a regular basis. (Two-page example only) 

Page 1 of 2



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 18 

M - G - O  R E P O R T  
Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon 

Page 2 of 2



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 19 

A p p e n d i x  A  
Future Land Use Plan 



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 20 

2018-2020 Economic Development Strategic Plan 
This three-year EDSP was prepared by Opportunity 
Strategies, LLC.  High level goals and objecƟves in the 
plan included the following: 

Goal 1: Asset Management & Acquisi on - Manage and 
develop proper es to secure new investment and 
employment in Athens 

1.1 Manage and develop current assets 
1.2 Pursue the acquisiƟon, development, and 
management of new assets 
1.3 IdenƟfy available industrial and retail / 
commercial sites and buildings for new private 
development 
1.4 ConƟnue adding and refining local regulaƟons 
and economic development incenƟves 
1.5 Support TxDOT, City of Athens, and Henderson 
County to seek funding for an airport expansion 

Goal 2: Marke ng and A rac on - Increase awareness 
of economic development opportuni es in Athens 

2.1 ConƟnue to recruit and encourage new 
industrial development in Athens 
2.2 Develop and implement an internal markeƟng 
plan 
2.3 Support efforts to enhance the image of Athens 
and its corridors and entrances 
2.4 Raise awareness of Athens’ quality of life and 
the growing Arts community 
2.5 ConƟnue to recruit new retail and commercial 
development in Athens 

Goal 3: Business Reten on and Expansion - Create an 
environment that promotes the prosperity and growth 
of exis ng businesses 

3.1 Maintain inventory of exisƟng businesses in 
Athens and manage relaƟonships through the 
Synchronist database 
3.2 Conduct exisƟng industry visits 
3.3 IniƟate community roundtables 
3.4 Conduct business appreciaƟon events 
3.5 Promote exisƟng small business programs and 
services 

Goal 4: Talent Development - Enhance and promote 
technical training opportuni es 

4.1 Support regional and local workforce 
development efforts 
4.2 Strength AEDC’s relaƟonship with TVCC and 
area ISD’s 
4.3 Target, develop and recruit young talent in 
Athens 

2013-2017 Economic Development Strategic Plan 
This five-year EDSP was prepared by TIP Strategies, LLC 
from AusƟn.  High level goals and objecƟves in the plan 
included the following: 

Goal 1: Sites & Tools - Increase the capacity to 
accommodate new investment and employment in 
Athens 

1.1 Pursue targeted assembly of sites & buildings 
suitable for industrial and commercial development 
1.2 IdenƟfy and market available sites and buildings 
for new private development 
1.3 ConƟnue adding and refining local economic 
development incenƟves 

Goal 2: Marke ng & A rac on - Increase awareness of 
economic development opportuni es in Athens 

2.1 Raise the profile of Athens regionally and 
naƟonally 
2.2 IniƟate a local markeƟng effort designed to 
highlight local business success stories 
2.3 Influence the image of Athens portrayed on the 
web and social media 
2.4 Raise awareness through affinity markeƟng 
2.5 Support efforts to enhance the image of 
gateways into Athens 

Goal 3: Business Reten on & Expansion - Create an 
environment that promotes the  prosperity and growth 
of exis ng businesses 

3.1 Maintain inventory of exisƟng businesses in 
Athens 
3.2 UƟlize a CRM system to manage contacts 
3.3 Administer a regularly scheduled employer 
survey 
3.4 Conduct business visitaƟons 
3.5 Host business roundtables 
3.6 Provide networking opportuniƟes for small 
businesses 
3.7 Promote exisƟng small business programs and 
services 
3.8 Review exisƟng City regulaƟons 
3.9 Have an intervenƟon strategy 
3.10 Assist revitalizaƟon efforts of downtown 
Athens 

Goal 4: Talent Development - Make Athens a 
des na on for technical training 

4.1 Support regional and local workforce 
development efforts 
4.2 Strengthen AEDC’s relaƟonship with TVCC 
4.3 ConƟnue supporƟng educaƟonal excellence 

A p p e n d i x  B  
Prior Economic Development Strategic Plans 



 

Athens, Texas  -  Economic Development CorporaƟon 
  2020 Ac on Plan   -   Approved April 21, 2020   -   Page 21 

A p p e n d i x  C  
Terms & DefiniƟons 

Following are terms used in this AcƟon Plan or referenced during development of the Plan.   
For a comprehensive list of Economic Development Terms, visit www.EDPBestPracƟces.com. 

Act - Development CorporaƟon Act:  The Development 
CorporaƟon Act of 1979, now codified in Chapters 501-
505 of the Texas Local Government Code.  This Act 
authorizes the establishment of AEDC’s. 

AcƟon Plan:  A plan developed by an organizaƟon to help 
them focus on goals, objecƟves, and tasks needed in 
the near term in order to accomplish their mission. 

AEDC - Athens Economic Development CorporaƟon:  An 
organizaƟon of the City funded by City sales tax. 

BRE - Business RetenƟon & Expansion:  Programs that 
support and expand exisƟng businesses. 

CIP - Capital Improvement Plan:  A plan for funding 
improvements to public infrastructure. 

EDO - Economic Development OrganizaƟon:  A generic 
descripƟon to represent all types of ED agencies. 

FLUP - Future Land Use Plan:  A map of the City showing 
the desired ulƟmate land use for all properƟes in the 
City. 

Goal:  A statement of a high-level acƟon to be 
accomplished through the compleƟon of objecƟves. 

IncenƟves:  Various inducements that a City might offer a 
business or developer to invest in their City. 

IncenƟves Policy:  A Policy approved by the governing 
body idenƟfying their recepƟvity to providing various 
types of incenƟves, and administraƟve processes to 
implement the incenƟves. 

Infrastructure:  Typically means the water, sewer, streets 
and drainage improvements owned and maintained by 
the City. 

MarkeƟng Collateral:  Any number of resources used to 
help an EDC market their jurisdicƟon. 

MarkeƟng Plan:  A Plan idenƟfying the venues, targets, 
and resources needed to market a jurisdicƟon.  OŌen 
includes a schedule and budget of events. 

Master Planning Components:  Typically a Future Land 
Use Plan, Thoroughfare Plan, Park Master Plan, Trail 
System Plan, Water / Sewer Plans. 

Mission:  A statement idenƟfying the purpose of an 
organizaƟon. 

 

NTCAR - North Texas Commercial AssociaƟon of Realtors:  
An organizaƟon of commercial brokers in the DFW 
region.  www.NTCAR.org 

ObjecƟve:  A statement idenƟfying what needs to be 
done to meet a goal. 

PrioriƟzaƟon Process:  The process of allowing all Board 
members to rank the idenƟfied objecƟves resulƟng in a 
cumulaƟve ranking for the Board. 

Prospect:  A potenƟal new business. 

SCR - Society of Commercial Realtors:  An organizaƟon of 
commercial brokers acƟve primarily in Tarrant County.  

Sites & Buildings Summary:  A document showing 
graphically the locaƟon of all available land sites in the 
City, with broker contact informaƟon and brief notes 
on zoning, land use plan, uƟliƟes, etc. 

SOP - Standard OperaƟng Procedure:  A procedure pre-
established to handle a parƟcular issue consistently. 

SWOT Analysis:  An analysis of the Strengths, 
Weaknesses, OpportuniƟes and Threats. 

TEDC - Texas Economic Development Council:  A state-
wide organizaƟon of professionals and volunteers in 
the economic development industry. 

Traffic Count Report:  A summary of 24 hour, two-way 
counts of vehicles passing a parƟcular point on a 
roadway. 

TxDOT:  The Texas Department of TransportaƟon. 

Zoning Map:  A map of the City showing the exisƟng 
zoning for all properƟes. 

 


